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Welcome – a message
from our Chairman and
Chief Executive
Welcome to our annual report for 2014-15 –
a year full of achievements, improvements
and challenges. In short, it was another year
to be proud of, and we have a lot of news
to share with you over the coming pages.
This was our busiest year ever, and over
the course of the 12 months, we treated
approximately 885,000 patients.

Importantly, we provided care in a cost
efficient way, and for the first time in
years, our hospitals ended the year with a
small financial surplus. This was thanks to
profit from the sale of land on the Sutton
site, money from our local clinical
commissioning groups (CCGs) and other
non-recurring payments.
In this report, we provide an overview of
our achievements and accomplishments,
including how we performed against the
standards the Government expect of us.

We also saw some good results from the
national inpatient survey, with 71% of
patients surveyed telling us that they would

We are incredibly proud of our hospitals
and our people, and we hope that this
report reflects all of the hard work that
goes into making our organisation what it
is. We hope you find this report interesting
and informative.

Laurence Newman
Chairman
laurence.newman@esth.nhs.uk

Daniel Elkeles
Chief Executive
daniel.elkeles@esth.nhs.uk

received a low risk
rating by the Government’s
health watchdog the Care
Quality Commission (CQC)

treated a
record
885,000
patients

ended the year
with a small
financial surplus

K

For more information about the performance
of our hospitals, including our regularly
updated waiting times and infection
prevention and control figures, please visit
www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/our-performance.

launched our
innovative Patient First
training programme

IS

These achievements included being given a
low risk rating by the Government’s health
watchdog the Care Quality Commission
(CQC), and an authoritative report from the
Royal College of Physicians that showed
that our hospitals are providing great care to
patients who have suffered a fractured hip.

But this year, our focus was beyond just
doing the day job – we wanted to find out
more about the experience our patients
have while they are in hospital, and try to
see things through their eyes. We officially
launched our innovative Patient First training
programme, which aims to help people do
just that. It has so far been a great success,
and has been the catalyst to a number of
improvements. You can find out more
about this on pages 10 and 11.

In the last 12 months,
our hospitals have…

R

Despite unprecedented demand on our
services, we are pleased to be able to tell you
that during the year, we marked a number
of important achievements that showcase
our high level of compassionate care, our
commitment to learning lessons and
improving, and the continued planning for
the sustainable future of our hospitals.

rate the care they received as at least an
8 out of 10, and 94% of patients saying that
the hospital rooms, wards, bathrooms and
toilets were clean.
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About us
As an acute trust, we offer a range
of hospital services to approximately
492,000 people living across south west
London and north east Surrey, including
Sutton, Merton and Epsom, as well as
patients from further afield.

Our services include, amongst many
others, cancer, stroke, immunology, sexual
health, allergy, women and children’s
services and dermatology.
St Helier Hospital is also home to the
South West Thames Renal and
Transplantation Unit and Queen Mary’s
Hospital for Children, whilst Epsom

Hospital is home to the world-renowned
South West London Elective Orthopaedic
Centre (SWLEOC).
Visit
www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/our-services
for more information about the services
we offer.

Our main acute hospitals are:

Epsom Hospital

St Helier Hospital

Epsom Hospital serves the southern part
of the catchment area and provides an
extensive range of inpatient, day and
outpatient services.

St Helier Hospital is our largest site,
providing services to an area of
south west London including Sutton
and Merton.

It has an accident and emergency
(A&E) service which saw approximately
56,786 attendances during the year.

The hospital has an A&E and Urgent
Care Centre (which together saw
more than 84,000 attendances in
2014-15), a comprehensive range of
diagnostic facilities within pathology
and radiology, and a range of
outpatient facilities. From here, we
also undertake most of our emergency
surgery.

The hospital undertakes the vast majority
of our elective (planned) inpatient
surgery activity.
Visit www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/
epsom-hospital for more information.
We also run the South West London
Elective Orthopaedic Centre (SWLEOC) in
conjunction with neighbouring trusts on
a partnership basis from the hospital.
SWLEOC is the largest hip, knee and
shoulder joint replacement centre in the
UK. Other sub-specialities include a young
adult hip service, soft tissue, spine, foot
and ankle procedures.

Queen Mary’s Hospital
for Children
This is our dedicated children’s hospital,
and is located on the St Helier site.
The hospitals provide local families with
a wide range of services, including
specialist care for cystic fibrosis, sickle
cell disease and llizarov fixation (a leg
lengthening procedure for children
who have shortened limbs).
Visit www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/
queen-marys-hospital-for-children.

Visit www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/
st-helier-hospital.

For more information about SWLEOC, visit
www.epsomsthelier.nhs.uk/swleoc.
We also provided services from:

Sutton Hospital
In the last financial year (2013-14), we
began a project to relocate services from
Sutton Hospital to our two larger sites at
Epsom and St Helier. In 2014-15 the trust
was approached by Sutton Council
about whether any land was surplus for
potential development and as a result of

careful consideration the board agreed
to the sale of 1.6 of the 7.6 hectare site.
We still run some outpatient services
from the site, including our Chronic
Fatigue Service and Centre of Pain
Education.

For more information about the trust,
our sites and the services we offer, visit
www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk.
You can also follow us on Twitter
(www.twitter.com/epsom_sthelier)
and find us on Facebook
(www.facebook.com/epsomsthelier).

Healthcare Assistant
Suzanne Shaw
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Our values and
priorities
At the heart of our hard work is a set
of beliefs – a set of five values that
drive us to keep improving the service
we provide to our patients, as well as

their family and friends. These values
also guide the way that we work
together as staff and volunteers, and
how we treat one another.

Our values

Our services

•
•
•
•
•

Put the patient first
Work as one team
Respect each other
Protect the environment
Strive for continuous improvement.

Our priorities for the year
2014-15 were:

Our clinical services are delivered
by five directorates:
• Clinical services
• Medicine
• Regional services
• Surgery, critical care and anaesthetics
• Women and children’s services.

• Our patients – improving our patient
experience and outcomes
• Our services – improving the quality
of our services
• Our people – developing an
increasingly motivated and flexible
workforce
• Our finances – eliminating our
deficit and moving to a position of
sustained annual surplus
• Our partners – provide clarity on the
long-term future and sustainability
of our hospitals in collaboration with
primary care, social care and other
NHS partners.

The lights were dimmed at St Helier Hospital in
November, as staff and visitors gathered to watch
as a sea of poppies were projected across the front
of the hospital.
As part of the Armistice Day commemorations, the
hospital was temporarily transformed into a canvas
of poppies – marking 100 years since the First World
War began, and paying tribute to servicemen and
women who have died in conflict.
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Priority one

OUR
patients

Providing great care to every patient, every day

“There should be no doubt
that our patients are our
number one priority, and are at
the heart of everything we do.”
This year, we began an innovative
initiative that we call Patient First. It
launched as we introduced the Patient
First training sessions – a chance for all
staff to come and look at our hospitals
through our patients’ eyes. Through
these workshops, staff have suggested
hundreds of improvements that help us
to put the patient first – from swapping
patient gowns for pyjamas, to making
it easier for patients and visitors to
identify our staff and what job they do
(see photograph above).
Looking at our hospitals through the eyes
of our patients was a key theme for
us during the year, and really helped us
to drive forward improvements. One of
our Older Person’s Assessment Liaison

Our new lanyards help
patients and visitors
to recognise our staff
and the different roles
they play.

Nurses, Sue Cook, took the chance to try
on an age simulation suit to experience
how older people feel as they come to
our hospitals for an appointment – and
with weights on the limbs and goggles
that reduce vision to mimic the symptoms
of glaucoma; it certainly wasn’t an
easy experience. You can watch the
video of Sue trying on the suit at
www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/
improving-the-patient-experience.
We want our patients and visitors to have
their say too – join Patient First and
keep up to date with all of the latest
developments at www.epsomsthelier.
nhs.uk/patientfirst. We have already
attracted more than 300 people to join
our movement.
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Our Patients

Chief Operating Officer Jackie Sullivan
outside our A&E department at
St Helier.
In December, our hospitals experienced
their busiest period since records began,
seeing and treating more than 3,000
A&E patients in just one week.
During 15-21 December 2014, the A&E
departments at Epsom and St Helier
hospitals, including the dedicated eye
casualty at Sutton, saw a staggering
3,138 patients – that’s more than 18
patients through the doors every hour.

Hello, my name is…

Our thriving A&E units
You will know that the national NHS
standard states that 95% of people who
attend an A&E department should be
cared for within a maximum of four
hours – this is known as the emergency
access target, it is a measure of
safety and it is something that we are
absolutely excelling at.
We were one of only five out of 19
London trusts who achieved this standard.
This is an incredible achievement and is
testament to the hard work of our team.
Stepping up to the challenge in 2014-2015, we saw 147,667 		
attendances at our A&Es. This
incorporates 56,786 Epsom
attendances, 5,901 Sutton Eye
Unit attendances, 58,475 St Helier 		
Emergency Department attendances
and 26,505 St Helier Urgent Care
Centre (UCC) attendances.

Did you know? Figures from March
2015 show that 96% of the patients
who visited our A&Es or stayed in our
hospitals and took part in the Friends
and Family test would recommend our
hospitals to others. That was 10%
better than the national average.

Ready for anything –
our resilience plans
As a large trust that runs services 24hours-a-day, seven-days-a-week, we
have to be ready to respond in the event
of a civil emergency (such as heavy snow
or a mass accident). In order to do that,
we maintain up-to-date major incident
plans and continue to work with local
resilience forums, NHS partners, our
staff, patients and volunteers to ensure
that we can respond effectively to any
emergency situation.

As part of these plans, this year we put
in place a £1.7 million programme to
deal with the challenges of winter, including
recruiting more nurses and doctors to work
in our busy A&E departments, preparing
additional beds for patients who are
admitted in emergencies, and opening some
of our key departments for longer.

Kate told our staff and volunteers that during an admission

As well as our emergency and winter plans,
we also develop and maintain plans for the
following key areas:
Who’s in the picture

• business continuity
• flu pandemic
• mass casualty.
These are regularly tested and awareness
training is given to staff at regular intervals.
As a ‘category one responder’, the trust
continues to meet its obligations under
the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and NHS
guidance on emergency preparedness, as
well as maintaining standards expected by
the CQC and the Department of Health.
We hold regular test exercises to make sure
we can respond to emergencies effectively
in all circumstances.
In June, we held an exercise to test how
we could respond to a chemical, biological,
radioactive or nuclear (CBRN) incident. Using
10 actors posing as patients, staff in the
A&E department set up decontamination
tents (where any patients affected by
chemicals or deemed to be contagious are
washed before entering hospital buildings)
and put on hazardous material suits. The
exercise was deemed a great success,
with staff able to learn from what is an
invaluable experience.

Sign up to Safety
Dr Franca Serafini,
an anaesthetist,
during resuscitation
simulation training.

We joined the #hellomynameis campaign in November
2014, after an inspirational and humbling visit from
Dr Kate Granger, an acting consultant in elderly medicine,
who was diagnosed with a terminal form of a rare and
aggressive cancer in 2011, aged just 29.

to hospital as a result of her condition, Kate realised that
barely any of the hospital staff introduced themselves to
patients, but when they did, the impact was huge. So
she wrote a blog post about it. The post soon went viral,
and the start of Kate’s now famous #hellomynameis
campaign was born. She has more than 29,000 followers
on Twitter, has published two books, regularly appears in
the media and recently picked up a HSJ award.

At the end of the year, we submitted plans
to make sure we continue to provide the
very best healthcare possible in a safe
environment and have consequently secured
national funding of £565,000.

01 The exercise to test our response
to a CBRN incident.

01

02

02 Our infant feeding team and maternity
staff achieved UNICEF’s Baby Friendly
accreditation. The award recognises
high standards in encouraging and
supporting new mums to bond with
their babies and make the best choice
in how to feed their newborn.
03 New mum Hannah nominated our Joint
Medical Director and Deputy Chief
Executive Dr Ruth Charlton for a Chief
Executive’s Award of Excellence for
the exceptional care of her young
son, Austin.

03

This funding will enable us to reduce
patient falls, ensure our sickest patients
are assessed and seen without delay and
make sure our monitoring of women in
labour is as accurate as possible. We are
extremely pleased with this achievement,
and we look forward to sharing more
details of this exciting work and how we
will implement our plans in 2015-16.

04

comes into our hospitals – whether it’s
for an outpatient appointment, a planned
operation, or someone who needs to
be admitted in an emergency – receives
the very best of care.

We measure our performance in a
number of ways, from how we achieve
key standards (see pages 18 and 19), to
commissioning detailed surveys that tell
us what our patients really think of our
Our patients are at the heart of every
single thing we do, and we are committed services. We also take part in the Friends
and Family test (which asks if patients
to making sure that each person who

04 Inspirational Paralympian David Weir
visited St Helier (the hospital where he
and his children were born) to talk to
Radio St Helier. He even let DJ David
Blackmore (pictured left) try out his
gold medal!

rate our services highly enough to
recommend us to a loved one).
And of course, members of the public,
patients and our staff are always welcome
to our monthly trust board meetings to
listen to the discussions that take place
and ask executive and non-executive
directors questions. You can find agendas,
previous minutes and more information
about the trust board online at
www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/board.
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Our Patients

Going green

We welcomed a
very special arrival
at Epsom Hospital
this year – Noah
(pictured here with
his mum, Ebere)
was the 100th
baby born in the
birth centre at
Epsom.

What do our patients
think?
Patients staying in our hospitals
Hundreds of patients who stayed
overnight for treatment at Epsom and
St Helier hospitals had their say in an
independent survey led by the nation’s
health watchdog, the Care Quality
Commission (CQC).
Published in April 2014, the CQC’s
NHS inpatient survey 2013 asked
hospital patients across the country
for their opinions on the care they
received, including the information
provided by staff, whether they
were given enough privacy, and the
cleanliness of the wards.

We are committed to engaging with
our patients and other local people
through the use of social media, and at
the time of writing, have more than
6,300 ‘followers’ on Twitter and 3,100
‘likes’ on Facebook. In a comprehensive
report on how the health service uses
social media, we were named as the
11th best trust (and were the highest
performing non-foundation trust).

Mr Usman Saeed
(on the right)
undertaking
cataract surgery.

Tweet all about it! We sent out
a massive 2,244 tweets over the 12
months – that’s more than six a day!
We know that by listening to and
engaging with patients and local people,
we can improve the experience that they
have when they come to our hospitals.
For more information about how we
engage with our patients and other local
people, please email communication@
esth.nhs.uk, or call us on 020 8296 4996.

We are fully signed up to meeting the
commitments laid out in the NHS
Carbon Reduction Strategy. This outlines
plans to reduce carbon emissions
by 25% by 2020 and 80% by 2050.
Our ‘baseline’ carbon footprint was
confirmed as 75,876 tonnes of CO2

emissions for 2007-08. During 2014-15,
our estimated position was 83,551
tonnes of C02 emissions. This was a 5%
decrease from our 2013-14 performance,
although still higher than the target set.
As part of our five year Estate Strategy,
we are investing approximately £15m

We have a sustainable
development management
plan in place, supported by
the trust board, with five
key areas of action:
Organisational
and
workforce
development

And the results showed that patients
cared for at Epsom and St Helier
remain pleased with the treatment
they received, with more than 71%
of patients rating their care as at least
8 out of 10.
In addition, 94% of those who took
part said that their ward or room was
very/fairly clean, 80% had confidence
and trust in the doctors who cared for
them and 85% said they were always
given enough privacy when being
examined or treated.

into schemes to reduce our carbon
footprint. This includes new insulated
roofs, double glazed window and external
cladding which also insulates the walls.
There are also plans to replace our boilers
and install combined heat and power
system at St Helier Hospital.

Procurement

Energy, water,
waste and
buildings

Food

Travel
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Our Patients

We continue to
invest millions
of pounds
each year into
improving our
services and
building on our
achievements
so far.

Her Royal Highness
Princess Alexandra
opened our brand
new Urology
Centre recently –
she is pictured here
arriving at Epsom
Hospital, where
she was greeted
by Chief Executive
Daniel Elkeles and
Chief Operating
Officer Jackie
Sullivan.

Investing in the care we provide
We continue to invest millions of pounds
each year into improving our services
and building on our achievements so far.
And this year was no different.
We invested more than £9.4 million in
improving our hospital buildings and
facilities, including the completion of our
new Urology Centre at Epsom, which
is a leading centre for the treatment of
kidney stones and interventional surgery
in Europe. It includes a new reception
area, new waiting room, new changing
areas for patients and a staffroom.
We also completed the first phase of
transferring our eye unit from Sutton
Hospital with the opening of the eye
service at Epsom, the first time that
Epsom Hospital has provided eye
services for many years.

Protecting our patients’
information
During the year, we invested in two
Consultant Midwives – new roles filled
by experienced midwives who offer the
maternity staff leadership, management
and development. Pictured here is
Marion Louki, the Consultant Midwife
for the St Helier site.

Every single member of staff at our
hospitals – whether working in a ward or
an office – has a duty to keep information
safe, secure and confidential.
Under the data protection act 1998,
everyone who works for the NHS, or in
partnership with us, has a duty to keep
information confidential. Any breach
of confidentiality by a member of staff
is a disciplinary offence.
This means that we only collect the
information we require, that we protect
the information we hold, and that we
do not keep it for longer than necessary.
We have an appointed senior information
risk owner (SIRO), Caldicott Guardian
and head of information security. All are
members of our information governance
committee and ensure adherence to the
relevant policies and procedures, which
are available to all our staff on our

intranet (our internal website for staff
and volunteers).
Every member of staff is required to
undertake mandatory and refresher
training on information governance and
all portable IT equipment – such as
laptops and data sticks – are encrypted.
The Department of Health’s ‘information
governance toolkit’, which the trust is
required to complete yearly, provides
guidance and assurance that the risks
to data security, including data protection
and confidentiality, are minimised. It also
requires us to have robust processes in
place to monitor and report any
threats or incidents.
We achieved 72% in the Health
and Social Care Information Centre’s
(HSCIC) information governance toolkit
for 2014-15.
Throughout 2014-15, we experienced
a total of 451 information governance
incidents. 406 of these were recorded
as no harm, 32 as minimal harm and
12 as short term harm. The theft of a
pathology transport vehicle containing
samples was reported to the Information
Commissioner.

Principles of remedy
We reaffirm our commitment to the
Parliamentary and Health Services
Ombudsman’s Principles of Remedy
which provides guidance on the way
we respond to complaints and concerns
raised by patients and public.
The six principles are:
1. Getting it right
2. Being customer focused
3. Being open and accountable
4. Acting fairly and proportionately
5. Putting things right
6. Seeking continuous improvement.
The principles set out are intended to
promote a shared understanding of how
to put things right when they have gone
wrong and to help public bodies such
as the Trust, in the Ombudsman’s
jurisdiction provide fair remedies.
The full document can be read at:
http://www.ombudsman.org.uk/
improving-publicservice/
ombudsmans principles/principles
-for-remedy/2.
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OUR
SERVICES
Improving the quality of our services

We are required to meet a number of key standards
that the Government sets for hospitals.

Standard

result

Emergency access – 95% of all patients attending
A&E should be treated, admitted or discharged
within a maximum of four hours.

ACHIEVED – 95.59% of our patients were
seen within four hours.

Infection control – have no more than 40 cases
of Clostridium difficile.

DID NOT ACHIEVE – we recorded 42 cases of
Clostridium difficile.

Infection control – have zero cases of MRSA
(bacteraemia).

DID NOT ACHIEVE – we recorded 7 cases
of MRSA.

18 week wait – 90% of patients who require
admission to hospital should be
treated within 18 weeks.

ACHIEVED – in the months when there was a
national requirement to do so, 90.51% of our
patients who were admitted to hospital were
seen within 18 weeks.

18 week wait – 95% of patients who do not
require admission to hospital should be seen
within 18 weeks.

ACHIEVED – in the months where there was a
national requirement to do so, 95.24% of our
patients who were not admitted were seen
within 18 weeks.

Cancer related targets
Two week rule (the maximum wait for
an urgent referral).

ACHIEVED – 95.5% of these patients were
seen within this time.

One month to treatment from confirmed
diagnosis.

ACHIEVED – 97.9% of these patients were
seen within this time.

85% patients referred to us with a
suspected cancer should wait a
maximum of 62 days for the start of
treatment.

DID NOT ACHIEVE – 77.3% achieved, against
a national standard of 85%.
In November 2014, the trust invited the NHS
Intensive Support Team (NHS IST) to review the
systems and processes we have in place around
cancer waiting times.
Following this initial feedback, we invested in
additional senior management (from staff with
a track record of working with cancer services),
to lead the work of improving cancer services
and performance. We are in the process of
implementing a very thorough plan to ensure
that we can meet the national cancer standards
from the first quarter of 2015-16.

Stroke care – at least 80% of patients
should spend at least 90% of their
hospital stay in a stroke unit.

DID NOT ACHIEVE – 78.9% of patients spent
90% of their time in a stroke unit.
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Our services

We invested more than
£9 million in our estates
and facilities this year,
including new pieces
of state-of-the-art
equipment like our CT
scanners and nuclear
medicine.

01

Care Quality Commission
registration
All health and adult social care providers
who provide regulated activities are
required by law to be registered with the
Care Quality Commission (CQC). To do
so, providers, such as us, must show they
are meeting their standards of quality
and safety.
If a trust is found to be falling short of
the standards, a warning notice will be
issued. This can then escalate to a fine,
prosecution, restrictions on activities or,
in extreme cases, closure.

St Helier Hospital
During the last inspection, the CQC
found that all standards in all five areas
were being met.
Epsom Hospital
During the last inspection, the CQC
found that all standards in all five areas
were being met.
Sutton Hospital
All standards found to be met following
the CQC’s assessment of declarations
and evidence supplied by the trust
during registration.

We are registered with the CQC with
no conditions.

Intelligent monitoring: our
risk rating

Following registration, the CQC regularly
checks all hospitals in England to ensure
they are still meeting the national
standards. Its findings are published on
the CQC website at www.cqc.org.uk.

Our hospitals were given the lowest
possible risk rating by the CQC in
December 2014. This national scheme
measures hospitals against 150 indicators.
To compile the rating, CQC analysts
measure hospitals against a wide range

of factors, including death rates, serious
errors and patient surveys using a method
known as ‘intelligent monitoring’.
From this data, all hospital trusts in the
county are given a risk rating, with a
risk band of one (meaning that the hospital
may be at risk of providing poor care), to
six (being the lowest risk rating).
Hospitals are rated every quarter and
throughout the year we received high
ratings – five and six.
Further information on the CQC’s rating
can be found at
www.cqc.org.uk/content/monitoringnhs-acute-hospitals.

Who’s in the picture
01 Proud staff from the
hip fracture unit: For
the third year in a row,
St Helier Hospital was
shown to have exceeded
many national averages
in the annual National
Hip Fracture Database
report

02

02 Lots of our staff are
parents, but with two
onsite nurseries, we’ve
got childcare covered

03 Some of our most senior
doctors in A&E

03
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OUR
PEOPLE
Improving the staff experience

“ We know that our hospitals
are only successful thanks to
the hard work and support of
our staff and volunteers.”

We are committed to ensuring that
every one of our 4,800 staff (as well as
our 500 volunteers) feel valued, and
that their efforts are widely recognised
across the organisation.
We hold monthly and annual staff
awards presentations, health and
wellbeing events, and have on-site
nurseries for the children of staff. We
also offer a staff counselling service,
which our employees can use for support
on a wide range of issues or concerns.

2014 NHS Staff Survey
A national survey of NHS staff has shown
that the teams at Epsom, Sutton and
St Helier hospitals feel satisfied with the
care that they deliver and are more likely
to recommend the hospitals to their
loved ones (when compared to the
national average).
The 2014 staff survey, published by NHS
England, indicates that 79% of staff are
happy with the patient care and work
that they do (against a national average
of 77%). The results also show that staff
at Epsom and St Helier are more likely to
report any errors or near misses, and that
lower than average numbers of staff
suffer from work related stress.
Of our substantive staff, 3.659 are female
(that’s 79.5%) and 919 are male (20%).

Being an inspiration: A junior doctor who
works at St Helier Hospital has raised
more than £34,000 (and counting) for
Cancer Research – just weeks after he
was diagnosed with a rare and potentially
terminal strain of the disease.
Dr Mark Sims, 27, was working in the
trauma and orthopaedics department at
the hospital when he was told that the
melanoma he had as a teenager had
returned, and that this time, the cancer
had spread. Without treatment, Mark
would have just four months to live. To
find out more, or donate to the cause,
visit www.justgiving.com/mark-Sims5.

Equal opportunities
We are proud to be an equal
opportunities employer. We are
committed to equality, and prospective
employees will not be discriminated
against regardless of disability, race,
gender, age, sexual orientation, religious
beliefs, marital status or working hours.
We follow an equality and diversity action
plan to help ensure that our workforce
reflects the diverse community we serve.
We are committed to the employment
and career development of disabled
people. To demonstrate our commitment,
we use the Disability Symbol which is
awarded by the Employment Service. As
a symbol user, we guarantee:
• To interview anyone with a disability
whose application meets the
minimum criteria for the post, and
consider them on their ability

• To ensure there is a mechanism in
place to discuss with disabled
employees what can be done to ensure
they can develop and use their
abilities
• To make every effort if employees
become disabled to make sure
they stay in employment
• To take action to ensure all employees
develop the appropriate level of
disability awareness needed to make the
commitments work
• To review these commitments each year,
including what we have achieved and
how we can improve on them.
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All of our equality plans, including our
gender equality action plan, equal
opportunities and managing diversity
policy – as well as our ‘equality delivery
system’ for patients – are all available on
our website: www.epsomsthelier.
nhs.uk/equality-and-diversity.

Listening to our people

Meet the Chief Executive – a monthly
opportunity for all staff to meet our Chief
Executive informally

Staff sickness
Over the course of 2014-15, our average
staff sickness was 4.47%. This is a
marginal increase on the previous year,
which had seen an average of 4.42%.
Sickness levels are reviewed on a monthly
basis at performance meetings and at a
separate meeting with People Business
Managers and Director of People and
Organisational Development, and we
have a plan in place to actively monitor
staff sickness.

We have always had a real commitment
to communicating with, and listening to
everyone from across the organisation.
This year we have provided a number
of ways for our staff to ask questions,
raise concerns or simply have open
conversations with our Chief Executive
and other senior members of our
management team. These include:
Senior Team Brief – the Chief Executive
briefs the 150 most senior managers at
monthly meetings. From this meeting,
the senior managers then cascade this
information to their own staff, giving
them the chance to ask questions about
all aspects of our work

24/25

Insight (intranet) – our internal website
for staff and volunteers acts as an
information sharing tool and is available
across all sites
e-update – a twice-weekly email bulletin
for all staff and volunteers to let them
read about our latest news and
developments
‘Breakfast with the Boss’ – every six
weeks, our Chief Executive invites a
selection of staff (chosen at random) to
join him for an informal chat over
breakfast.

Dr David Makanjuola, Consultant
Nephrologist, provides oversight for
the Epsom satellite dialysis unit as well
as joint oversight for our haemodialysis
patients at St Helier.
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“We have always had
a real commitment
to communicating
with, and listening to
everyone from across
the organisation.”
Caroline Thomas, the manager
of our onsite nursery at
Sutton.  
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Priority four

OUR
finances

Eliminating our deficit and moving to a position
of sustained annual surplus

We are delighted to report that for the
first time in many years the trust ended
the year with a surplus of £78,000 after
adjusting for a number of technical
adjustments. During 2014 –15 the trust
made savings of £14.1million which is
3.9% of income and whilst this fell short
of the target set for the year, it is
nonetheless a creditable achievement
against the continuing backdrop of
significant emergency activity pressures
experienced during the year. Clearly this

position could not have been achieved
without the efforts of all staff groups
throughout the organisation. Despite
significant financial challenges during
2014 –15, the trust has maintained its
drive to return to a surplus and deliver
its key financial duties.
During the year, we sold part of our
Sutton estate to Sutton Council. All
proceeds £7.9 million from this sale
are being invested back into the trust.

Accountability
In order to reduce the risk of fraud or
misuse of public money, we continue
to implement the codes of conduct,
accountability and practice on openness.
We also follow standing orders (SOs) and
standing financial instructions (SFIs).
They also provide our workforce with
clear guidelines so that transactions are
carried out in accordance with the law
and Government policy.
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Partners
Sustaining high quality patient care

Our mission is to provide
great care to every patient,
every day. Key to that is
partnership working.
Over the year we have been working
closely with our patients, commissioners,
other health and care providers, local
authorities, the voluntary sector, the
NHS Trust Development Authority (TDA),
NHS England and Monitor in the interests
of our patients and a sustainable local
health and social care economy.
As part of this work we have developed
a clear description of our five year
plans (approved at the trust board
on 27 March 2015).
Our future - Our five year strategy
2015 – 2020
Our partnership approach, coupled with
the hard work and dedication of our
people, has given our organisation –
for the first time – the platform to
confidently plan for the next five years.
This is an incredibly exciting time for our
organisation, and as we enter the new
phase of Epsom and St Helier, we have
set out the following commitments:
• Both Epsom Hospital and St Helier
Hospital will continue to provide
consultant led, 24/7 A&E, maternity
and inpatient paediatric services
• In addition, St Helier will provide 		
specialist and emergency care such
as acute surgery for our most sick 		
patients, and Epsom will expand its
range of planned care
• We will continue our work with
patients, GPs, commissioners and
partners to provide significantly more
care in community settings, closer to
home for patients, so that they only
have to come to hospital when they
really have to.

Our people are central to delivering our
mission. Along with greatly improving
substantive staffing levels we will seek to
engage, empower, develop and equip our
teams to perform to their full potential,
with clear responsibility and accountability.
We will establish an organisational culture
that reflects our values and behaviours.
We will help and reward all our people
who actively wish to come on the change
journey with us, supporting them in their
education and continuing professional
development. We aspire to be a high
quality organisation where we are both
an ‘employer of choice’ and a ‘provider
of choice’.
We will refresh and embed our values to
create a ‘one team, one trust’ culture
and focus on the delivery of the following
five objectives to ensure we provide high
quality, compassionate care to all our
patients:
• Delivering safe and effective care
with respect and dignity
• Creating a positive experience that 		
meets the expectations of our patients,
their families and carers
• Providing responsive care that delivers
the right treatment, in the right
place at the right time
• Being financially sustainable
• Working in partnership with our patients,
commissioners, other health and care
providers, local authorities, the voluntary
sector, the NHS TDA, NHS England and
Monitor in the interests of our patients
and a sustainable local health and social
care economy.
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Our partners

The Friends of Epsom Hospital donated a
retinal scanner worth £130,000. Pictured
here are volunteers, Margaret Rates and
Kim Beevor and in the back row (from left to
right): Mr Paul Ursell, Rosemary Westcott,
Dr Geoffrey Robb and Mr Usman Saeed.

Our values and five objectives will be
cascaded throughout the organisation and
will form the basis for setting objectives
for each director, directorate, service and
member of staff. We will refine a set of
metrics to evaluate our delivery against
each objective, which will be consistently
measured at service, directorate and trust
levels. This will determine the greatest
risks to their delivery, which, in turn, will
form the basis for our Board Assurance
Framework. We will work systematically to
mitigate these risks and this will drive the
• Variability in the delivery of clinical care,
plan to deliver first class facilities for
operational focus for the organisation.
which increases risk and potential
our patients as part of the on-going
harm for our patients. We will work
work across south west London
The principal challenges that we face
together to instill the culture of ‘one
• Finance – in order to develop new 		
in order to deliver our vision are:
team, one trust’ and work to consistent,
models of care, invest in quality and
• The need to strengthen staffing in
evidence-based operating practices 		
innovation, and tackle our poor
key service areas - we will tackle this
across all our services and sites
estate, we will need to create a recurrent
through a proactive and creative 		
• Poor estates - the quality of the St Helier
surplus each year. This requires us to
recruitment strategy, by valuing our
estate, in particular, is unacceptable.
become more efficient, remove
people and improving their working
We will tackle this by agreeing a fiveunnecessary duplication and reduce
lives, and through role and service
year investment plan for our estate at
our overhead costs.
redesign
both sites and developing a long term

Dr Usha Prasad, Cardiology
Consultant.

We will continue our
work with patients,
GPs, commissioners
and partners to provide
significantly more care
in community settings

01

02

Who’s in the picture
01 We were delighted to welcome Great
British Bake Off Star Mel Giedroyc to
Epsom Hospital during the year, who
declared the new home-from-home
birth centre officially open!
02 Dr Amir Hassan, Consultant in our A&E
departments
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Our partners

Mr Adam Frampton prepares
for surgery.

Our people are central to
delivering our mission. Along with
greatly improving substantive
staffing levels we will seek to
engage, empower, develop
and equip our teams to perform
to their full potential, with clear
responsibility and accountability.
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Executive and non-executive directors
and the role of the trust board
Our trust board, which is comprised of
both executive and non-executive
directors, is ultimately responsible for
setting our strategy and assuring our
overall performance. Our trust is led by
an experienced and dynamic board
which enjoys a combination of public,
private, commercial and government
experience.
As a part of this work, it’s the role of
the trust board to:
• Set the strategic direction of the trust
and associated plans
• Ensure high standards of clinical and
corporate governance
• Oversee financial stewardship
• Ensure effective dialogue with the
local community.

There are nine executive directors who
form the trust’s senior management
team. Five of the executive directors are
voting members of the trust board.

Board meetings are held at either St Helier
or Epsom hospitals, and members
of the public are welcome to attend the
meetings. You can see dates of
upcoming meetings at www.epsomsthelier.nhs.uk/our-board.
Agendas, minutes and papers for trust
board meetings are available on our
website: www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk/
board-papers-and-agendas. You can
also join a mailing list to receive trust board
information as soon as it is published.
Non-executive directors 2014-15
Non-executive directors represent the
interests of the communities they serve,
and both support and challenge the trust
board where necessary. All non-executive

directors are appointed by the NHS
Trust Development Authority and are
voting members of the trust board.
Non-executive directors are appointed
to serve a term of four years. The
trust’s non-executive directors are:

Register of interests - The following
directors have registered relevant interests
during the year:

As at 27 March 2015
Name

Title

Declared Interests

Laurence Newman

Chairman

1. Member of Investment Committee Comic Relief
2. Chairman Grove End Housing Ltd
3. Trustee, Creativity, Culture and Education (Charity)
4. Trustee, Commonweal Housing Trust (Charity)
5. Spouse is seconded three days per week to South West London and
St George’s Mental Health NHS Trust

Daniel Elkeles

Chief Executive

None

Chrisha Alagaratnam

Deputy Chief
Executive and
Director of Finance
and Performance

Spouse is the Responsible Individual for Regulation 26 of the Care Homes Regulations 2001
for two care homes in Croydon.

Patricia Baskerville

Non-Executive
Director

None

Elizabeth Bishop

Non-Executive
Director

1. Director of Finance and Administration at the Nuffield Trust for Research and Policy
Studies in Health Services (no association with Nuffield Hospitals).
2. Director of Nuffield Trading Limited.
3. Director of Chessman Limited.

Dr Ruth Charlton

Joint Medical Director

None

Kevin Croft

Director of People
and Organisational
Development

1. President of the Healthcare People Management Association (HPMA).
2. Spouse has a commissioning role (prison health) in Surrey.

Peter Davies

Director of Strategy
and Business
Development

1. Owner/director of a consultancy service established in 2010 to advise clients on engaging with
and navigating Whitehall.
2. Trustee of a charity that owns a hospital for older people in Ireland, and makes discretionary
grants to disabled former personnel from the UK armed forces resident in the whole of Ireland.

Pippa Hart

Chief Nurse

None

Dr James Marsh

Joint Medical Director

Spouse is a clinical lead at Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.

Dr Iain MacPhee

Non-Executive
Director

1. Employee of St George’s, University of London.
2. Honorary Clinical Contract as Consultant Nephrologist.
3. Spouse is an employee of Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust.

Richard Noble

Non-Executive
Director

Vice Chairman, Investment Banking, Nomura International plc.

Steve Poulton

Non-Executive
Director

Employee of Pfizer Ltd, a supplier of pharmaceuticals to the NHS, however direct responsibilities are
for other European markets and exclude any UK operations.

Helena Reeves

Interim Director of
Communications and
Corporate Affairs

Director/Owner of Helena Reeves Associates (Communications Consultancy).

Jackie Sullivan

Chief Operating
Officer

None

Chairman
Laurence Newman
Vice Chairman
Patricia Baskerville CBE
Non-Executive Directors
Elizabeth Bishop
Dr Iain MacPhee
Richard Noble (from July 2014)
Steve Poulton

The trust’s executive directors for
Some of the other executive director’s
positions are non-voting board members. 2014-15 were:
This means they may attend and advise the
board, but do not have voting rights.

Executive directors 2014-15
Daniel Elkeles

Chief Executive, voting board member (from January 2015)

Chrisha Alagaratnam

Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Performance, voting board member
(acting Chief Executive April 2014 to December 2014)

Jackie Sullivan

Chief Operating Officer, voting board member

Kevin Croft

Director of People and Organisational Development (non-voting)

Dr Ruth Charlton

Joint Medical Director, joint voting board member
Acting Deputy Chief Executive and Joint Medical Director (April 2014 – December 2014)

Matthew Hopkins

Chief Executive, voting board member (on secondment to Barking, Havering and Redbridge Hospitals NHS Trust
from March 2014 to September 2014). Resigned September 2014.

Dr James Marsh

Joint Medical Director, joint voting board member.

Pippa Hart

Chief Nurse, voting board member

Peter Davies

Director of Strategy and Business Development (non-voting)

Rob Whiteford

Acting Director of Finance, voting board member (March 2014 to November 2014)

Angela Bascombe

Acting Director of Finance, voting board member (November 2014 to January 2015)

Rachel Royall

Director of Communications and Corporate Affairs (non-voting)
(on secondment to Barking, Havering and Redbridge Hospitals NHS Trust from July 2014 to January 2015).
Resigned January 2015.

Helena Reeves

Acting Director of Communications and Corporate Affairs, (non-voting) (July 2014 to March 2015)
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Financial review
2014-15 key financial targets
The table below sets out the financial
targets for Epsom and St Helier
University Hospitals NHS Trust, and
the performance against these, for the
2014-15 financial year:

Target

Performance

Target met?

Achieve a 2% surplus on
income and expenditure

The trust posted a reported
surplus of £0.1 million

No

Keep within capital resource
limit (CRL) of £9.8 million

The trust remained within the CRL,
and generated an underspend
of £2.3 million

Yes

Remain within the external
financing limit (EFL) of (+)
£0.1 million

The trust remained within its EFL.
The undershot of £0.9 million as
agreed with the NHS Trust
Development Authority

Yes

Keep within a Capital Cost
Absorption Rate (CCAR)
of 3.5%

The trust kept within the 3.5%
CCAR, resulting in dividend
payments of £5.1 million

Yes

Meet the requirement of the Public
Sector Payment Policy to settle
95% of creditors within 30 days

The trust achieved settlement rates of
between 69% and 91%, by volume
and value respectively

No
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Where our money comes from

What we spend our money on
services and £25.8 million of which
related to income for non-patient
care services such as research and
development, training and education
and facilities income.

Trust income increased by £9.8 million
between 2013-14 and 2014-15. The
total income received by the trust during
the financial year was £365.8 million,
of which £340.0 million was for clinical

The following chart shows the breakdown
of different types of income received by
the trust during the year:

Where our money comes from
		
		
Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England
Education, training and research
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Income generation
Non NHS: Private Patients
Injury Cost Recovery
Other Income
		

care, £11.0 million on other supplies,
£22.7 million on transport, premises,
and establishment costs and £9.2 million
on depreciation and amortisation of
our capital assets. In addition the trust
paid £5.1 million in dividends to the
Department of Health.

(*Note that this includes the expenditure
on impairments of £8.2m in 2013-14 and
£4.6m in 2014-15)

The following chart shows the breakdown
of different types of expenditure
incurred by the trust during the year:

What we spend our money on
Amount
£000
332,972
15,574
1,994
4,785
3,635
1,031
5,778
365,769

%

Amount
£000
231,523
65,501
14,230
10,954
8,660
7,795
7,382
6,231
5,474
4,631
5,261
3,006
370,648

		
		
Employee Benefits
Supplies and Services - Clinical
Premises
Supplies and Services - General
Total Depreciation
Others
Clinical Negligence
Healthcare from Non-NHS Bodies
Transport
Property Impairments
Services from Foundation Trusts
Establishment
		

91%
4%
1%
1%
1%
0%
2%
100%

1,031
3,635

The trust spent *£370.7 million in
operating costs during 2014-15, an
increase of £4.4 million from 2013-14.
The largest amount of money was spent
on staffing at £231.5 million. Other areas
of spend include £65.5 million on
supplies and services for direct patient

%
62%
18%
4%
3%
2%
2%
2%
2%
1%
1%
1%
1%
100%

5,778
3,006

15,574

4,785

5,261
4,631
5,474

1,994
5,231
7,382
7,795

Clinical commissioning groups and NHS England
Education, training and research
Non-patient care services to other bodies

332,972

Employee benefits

8,660
10,954

Supplies and services - clinical

14,230
65,501

Premises

Income generation

Supplies and services - general

Non-NHS: Private patients

Total depreciation

Injury cost recovery

Others

Other income

231,523

Clinical negligence
Healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Transport
Property impairments
Services from foundation trusts
Establishment
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Capital investment

Audit committee 2013/14

Charitable funds

Remuneration

During 2014-15 the trust has
invested £9.9 million in capital
expenditure.

The Audit committee provides an
objective view of the trust’s internal
control and is responsible for:

Epsom and St Helier University
Hospitals NHS trust act as Trustees
to the same name charity. Copies
of the most recent accounts can
be obtained from the Charity
Commission website, charitycommission.gov.uk.

Directors’ and Senior Managers’ Salaries and Allowances – Audited

Improving value for money
The trust has made £14.1 million
of efficiency savings during the
financial year, which equates to
3.9% of total income.

Counter fraud
Counter Fraud Services are provided
through the trust’s internal audit
contract. The trust has an up to date
counter fraud and whistleblowing
policy. The counter fraud service
provide advice and support to the
trust and advise on appropriate
proactive initiatives whilst carrying
out reactive investigations where
required.

External auditors
The trust’s external auditor is Grant
Thornton. The total cost of their
statutory work in 2014-15 was
£104,000 (£84,000 in 2013-14). This
included the auditing of the annual
accounts and this annual report.

• monitoring governance, risk
management and internal control
• ensuring there is an effective
internal audit function
• reviewing the work and findings
of the external auditor
• considering governance 		
implications and reviewing the
financial reporting arrangements
of the Trust.
Each board director has stated that,
as far as they are aware, there is no
relevant audit information of which
the trust’s auditors are unaware. All
directors have taken steps to make
themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish
that the trust’s auditors are aware of
such information. All interests have
been reported to the Trust Secretary.
			

Looking forward to 2015-16
The trust is planning to break even
in 2015-16 whilst continuing to
operate in a challenging financial
environment. This is shaped by the
national financial picture with the
ongoing need to reduce the public
deficit and the increasing challenge
to maintain NHS funding. A bigger
test for the trust in 2015-16 is the
realignment of resource across
Health and Social Care into the
Better Care Fund. These factors sit
along the pressures of investing
in clinical staffing ratios, providing
services seven days a week and
responding to increasing demand.
Sound financial management,
therefore, remains vital to achieving
our financial targets.
The trust has a significant capital
investment programme for 201516 – investing £18m to improve our
estates, purchase medical equipment
and improve IT capabilities.

2014-15
(e)
All pension
related
benefits
(bands of
£2,500)
£000

(f)
TOTAL
(a to e)
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(a)
Salary
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(b)
Expense
payments
(taxable)
to nearest
£100
£00

Performance
pay and
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(d)
Long term
performance
pay and
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000) £000

(e)
All pension
related
benefits
(bands of
£2,500)
£000

(f)
TOTAL
(a to e)
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Mr Laurence Newman
20-25
0
0
Chairman		

0

0

20-25

20-25

0

0

0

0

20-25

Patricia Baskerville
Non-Executive

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

Elizabeth Bishop
Non-Executive

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

Dr Iain MacPhee,
Non-Executive Director

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

0

0

0

0

0

0

Steve Poulton
5-10
0
Non-Executive		

0

0

0

5-10

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

Cherry McCormack
Non-Executive

0-5

0

0

0

0

0-5

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

Richard Noble
Non-Executive Director

0-5

0

0

0

0

0-5

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professor David Olivera
Non-Executive

0

0

0

0

0

0

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

Daniel Elkeles
Chief Executive

40-45

0

0

0

87.5-90

130-135

0

0

0

0

0

0

Chrisha Alagaratnam
acting Chief Executive
(and substantive Deputy Chief
Executive and Director of
Finance and Performance),

135-140

0

0

0

125-127.5

260-265

125-130

0

0

0

0

125-130

Rob Whiteford
65-70
0
acting Director of Finance and
Performance		

0

0

0

65-70

0

0

0

0

0

0

Angela Bascombe
acting Director of Finance and
Performance

0-5

0

0

0

2.5-5

5-10

0

0

0

0

0

0

Dr Ruth Charlton *
Deputy Chief Executive and
Joint Medical Director

210-215

0

0

0

47.5-50

255-260

200-205

0

0

0

0

200-205

Dr James Marsh *
185-190
Joint Medical Director		

0

0

0

25-27.5

205-210

180-185

0

0

0

0

180-185

Jackie Sullivan
Chief Operating Officer

120-125

0

0

0

42.5-45

162.5-165 120-125

0

0

0

0

120-125

Peter Davies
Director of Strategy and
Business Development

110-115

0

0

0

25-27.5

135-140

105-110

0

0

0

0

105-110

Kevin Croft
Director of Human Resources

110-115

0

0

0

72.5-75

185-190

110-115

0

0

0

0

110-115

Pippa Hart
Director of Nursing Standards
and Quality Assurance

105-110

0

0

0

70-72.5

175-180

100-105

0

0

0

0

100-105

Helena Reeves
Director of Communications
and Corporate Affairs

90-95

0

0

0

5-7.5

95-100

0

0

0

0

0

0

Rachel Royall
Director of Communications
and Corporate Affairs

85-90

0

0

0

0

85-90

90-95

0

0

0

0

90-95

Matthew Hopkins
Chief Executive

0

0

0

0

0

0

155-160

0

0

0

0

155-160

Dr Martin Stockwell
Joint Medical Director

0

0

0

0

0

0

165-170

0

0

0

0

165-170

Nicholas Gorvett
Director of Corporate
Infrastructure

0

0

0

0

0

0

90-95

0

0

0

0

90-95

Anthony Tiernan
Director of Communications
and Corporate Affairs

0

0

0

0

0

0

70-75

0

0

0

0

70-75

Karen Breen
Director of Operations

0

0

0

0

0

0

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

(a)
Salary
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

(b)
Expense
payments
(taxable)
to nearest
£100
£00

Performance
pay and
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

2013-14

(d)
Long term
performance
pay and
bonuses
(bands of
£5,000)
£000

Name and title

* The amounts disclosed above for Dr James Marsh and The salary for Dr Ruth Charlton for acting as Deputy
Dr Ruth Charlton, joint medical directors of the trust,
Chief Executive and joint medical director of the trust
includes remuneration paid for work performed both
is in the banding £95,000 and £100,000.
as a clinical member of staff and as senior managers.

The salary for Dr James Marsh for acting as joint
medical director of the trust is in the banding £90,000
and £95,000.
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The following executives did not serve
the entire financial year:
Name and title

From

To

Daniel Elkeles
Chief Executive

5 January 2015

–

Angela Bascombe
Acting Director of Finance and Performance

18 November 2015

15 January 2015

Rob Whiteford
Acting Director of Finance and Performance

1 April 2015

17 November 2015

Rachel Royall
Director of Communication and Corporate Affairs

–

14 July 2014

Helena Reeves
Director of Communications and Corporate Affairs

1 January 2015

31 March 2015

Pay multiples

A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is
the actuarially assessed capital value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a
member at a particular point in time. The
benefits valued are the member’s accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme.

Reporting bodies are required to disclose
the relationship between the remuneration
of the highest-paid director in their
organisation and the median remuneration
of the organisation’s workforce.

A CETV is a payment made by a pension
scheme or arrangement to secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves
a scheme and chooses to transfer the
benefits accrued in their former scheme.

Directors’ and senior managers’ pension benefits – audited

(a)
Real
increase
in pension
at age 60
(bands
of £2,500)
£000

Cash equivalent transfer values

(b)
Real increase
in pension
lump sum
at aged 60
(bands of
£2,500)
£000

(c)
Total accrued
pension at
age 60 at 31
March
2015 (bands
of £5,000)
£000

(d)
Lump sum at
age 60 related
to accrued
pension at 31
March 2015
(bands of
£5,000) £000

(e)
Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value
at 1 April
2014
£000

(f)
Real
increase
in Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value
£000

(g)
Cash
Equivalent
Transfer
Value
at 31 March
2015
£000

(h)
Employer’s
contribution
to
stakeholder
pension
£000

Daniel Elkeles
2.5-5
Chief Executive		

10-12.5

25-30

85-90

346

64

420

0

Angela Bascombe
acting Director of Finance and Performance

0-2.5

0-2.5

25-30

80-85

484

43

540

0

Chrisha Alagaratnam
acting Chief Executive (and substantive
Deputy Chief Executive and Director of
Finance and Performance)

5-7.5

16-17.5

40-45

125-130

573

104

692

0

Dr James Marsh
Joint Medical Director

0-2.5

2.5-5

40-45

125-130

681

39

738

0

Dr Ruth Charlton
Deputy Chief Executive and Joint Medical Director

0-2.5

5-7.5

45-50

145-150

786

61

868

0

Jackie Sullivan
Chief Operating Officer

0-2.5

5-7.5

50-55

150-155

959

69

1054

0

Pippa Hart
Director of Nursing Standards and Quality Assurance

2.5-5

7.5-10

45-50

135-140

770

83

875

0

Kevin Croft
Director of Human Resources

2.5-5

7.5-10

30-35

90-95

427

66

504

0

Rachel Royall
Director of Communication and Corporate Affairs

0

0

2.5-5

0

29

-9

21

0

Peter Davies
Director of Strategy and Business Development

0-2.5

0

45-50

0

466

27

505

0

Helena Reeves
Director of Communications and Corporate Affairs

0-2.5

0-2.5

15-20

45-50

294

13

315

0

The pension figures shown relate to the
benefits that the individual has accrued as
a consequence of their total membership
of the pension scheme, not just their
service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. The CETV figures and
the other pension details include the value
of any pension benefits in another scheme
or arrangement which the individual has
transferred to the NHS pension scheme.
They also include any additional pension
benefit accrued to the member as a result
of their purchasing additional years of
pension service in the scheme at their
own cost. CETVs are calculated within the
guidelines and framework prescribed by
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real increase in CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively
funded by the employer. It takes account
of the increase in accrued pension due to
inflation, contributions paid the employee
(including the value of any benefits
transferred from another scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market
valuation factors for the start and end of
the period.

The banded remuneration of the highest
paid member of the Board in the Trust for
the financial year 2014-15 was £210,000
to £215,000 (2013-14, £200,000 to
£205,000).
This was ten times the median
remuneration of the workforce (2013-14
nine times), which was £21,000 (2013-14:
£22,000).
During 2014-15 the Trust’s highest paid
Director was Dr Ruth Charlton, Deputy
Chief Executive and Joint Medical Director.
In 2014-15 no employees received
remuneration in excess of the highest-paid
member of the Board (2013-14 none).
Remuneration ranged from £0 to £5,000
to £210,000 to £215,000 (2013-14: £0 to
£5,000 to £200,000 to £205,000).
Total remuneration includes salary,
non-consolidated performance-related
pay, benefits-in-kind, but not severance
payments. It does not include employer
pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions.
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Off-payroll engagements
Remuneration Report

2014/2015

No.

2013/2014

Salary
(exc nonconsol
perf. pay)

Nonconsolidated
Performance
pay

Benefits
in kind

£,000

£,000

£,000

No.

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2015, for more
than £220 per day and that last longer than six months:

Salary
(exc nonconsol perf.
pay)

Nonconsolidated
Performance
pay

Benefits
in kind

£,000

£,000

£,000

Number

			
Highest Paid Directors By band

1

210-215

N/A

N/A 		

200-205

N/A

N/A

Highest Paid Employees By band

2

170-175

N/A

N/A

1

170-175

N/A

N/A

2

175-180

N/A

N/A

4

175-180

N/A

N/A

1

180-185

N/A

N/A

4

180-185

N/A

N/A

3

185-190

N/A

N/A

2

185-190

N/A

N/A

1

190-195

N/A

N/A

1

190-195

N/A

N/A

1

195-200

N/A

N/A

3

195-200

N/A

N/A

1

200-205

N/A

N/A

1

200-205

N/A

N/A

Highest Paid Director’s Total Renumeration

1

210-215				

200-205

Median Total 		

21,431				

21,909

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2015
Of which, the number that have existed:
for less than one year at the time of reporting
for between one and two years at the time of reporting
for between 2 and 3 years at the time of reporting
for between 3 and 4 years at the time of reporting
for 4 or more years at the time of reporting

210-215				

Number

200-205

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months
in duration, between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015
Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses giving
the Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust the right to
request assurance in relation to income tax and National Insurance
obligations
Number for whom assurance has been requested
Of which:
assurance has been received
assurance has not been received
engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received

In compiling the above table, the trust has
not included agency staff on the basis that
it will not have a significant impact on the
computation of the ratio between the
median salary to the Highest paid Director.

46
42
9
5
0

For all new off-payroll engagements between 1 April 2014 and
31 March 2015, for more than £220 per day and that last longer
than six months:

Ratio		9.87				 9.17
Highest Paid Director’s Total 		
Remuneration

102

20
20

20
20
0
0

Number

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for determining the pay and
contractual arrangements for our most
senior managers and for monitoring
and evaluating their performance.
Information relating to executive and
non-executive directors is therefore
included in this report.
The committee comprises the Chairman
and all non-executive directors of the
Board. The Remuneration Committee
reviews the salaries of its most senior
managers annually. Cost of living awards
are in accordance with the guidance

issued by the Department of Health.
In 2007-08, a detailed analysis of
market rates was undertaken to obtain
contemporary evidence of salary rates
in comparative NHS organisations.

performance and development review
process, but performance-related pay does
not feature in the remuneration package.

Details of directors’ remuneration and
pension entitlements are covered in the
tables on pages 43 to 45. This has been
Standardised terms and conditions of
service apply to the most senior managers, subject to audit.
who are employed on open-ended
Information from the Register of Interests
contracts of employment. The contracts
recorded by Board directors during the year
for senior managers provide for three
can be found on page 36-37 of this report.
months’ notice of termination, except
						
in cases of gross misconduct, when
			
summary dismissal would be imposed.
Performance of the most senior managers
is assessed formally through our individual

Chief Executive

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior
1
officers with significant financial responsibility, during the year
Number of individuals that have been deemed “board members, and/or
1
senior officers with significant financial responsibility” during the financial
year. This figure includes both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements

HM Treasury’s guidance on setting charges for information
Where applicable the trust has complied with HM Treasury’s
guidance on setting charges for information, as set out in
Chapter 6 to “Managing Public Money”.
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EPSOM AND ST HELIER UNIVERSITY
HOSPITALS NHS TRUST
Financial statements for the 12 months
ended 31 March 2015
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

Scope of responsibility

1

As Accountable Officer, and Chief
Executive of the trust, I have
responsibility for maintaining a sound
system of internal control that supports
the achievement of the organisation’s
policies, aims and objectives. I also
have responsibility for safeguarding
quality standards and ensuring the best
use of public funds and acknowledge
my responsibilities for demonstrating
an understanding of propriety and
accountability as set out in the
Accountable Officer Memorandum for
Chief Executives of NHS Trusts¹.

2

Since my appointment as Chief
Executive on 1st January 2015 I
have worked closely with the NHS Trust
Development Authority through regular
dialogue and meetings to review strategic
and operational issues and to ensure
that the trust is contributing positively
to the overall health of the local
population in the geographical areas
where services are provided.
I am aware that prior to my appointment
the interim Chief Executive (in post from
April 2014 to 31st December 2014) also
maintained a regular dialogue with the
NHS Trust Development Authority.

5

Table 1 (below) shows the seven
board committees which provide
assurances to the trust board. These
are supported by sub-committees
which enable the board committees to
challenge and scrutinise of the work of
the clinical and operational management
of the trust.

Governance framework of the
organisation
Corporate governance

3

The trust board is responsible for
setting the strategic direction for the
trust. The board ensures high standards
of clinical and corporate governance are
maintained, oversees financial stewardship
and ensures there is an effective dialogue
with the local community.

Finance and
contracting group

Remuneration
committee

Statuory and
mandatory
training committee

The BGAF concluded that the board
needed to undertake a formal evaluation
consistent with the NHS Foundation
Trust Code of Governance. It agreed to
procure external support to conduct this
evaluation. For 2015/16 the board has
appointed an external body, Deloitte,
to support its Board Development
Programme.

People and
organisational
development
committee
Trust board

Each board committee is chaired
by a non-executive director (with
the exception of the Trust Executive
Committee) and has an executive director
lead. The Remuneration Committee is
constituted of non-executive directors
only and the Audit Committee has
three non-executive director members
supported by the trust’s external auditors,
internal audit, counter fraud and
management as required.

Finance and
service
improvement
committee

4

Throughout 2014/15 the board has
reviewed its governance arrangements
as part of the work completed in the
production of its 2014-2019 Integrated
Business Plan (IBP). This has included work
by the board in addressing the Board
Governance Assurance Framework (BGAF)
self-assessment designed to provide
assurances in relation to various indicators
of board governance including its current
capacity and capability, and supported by
appropriate evidence. The BGAF included
a self-assessment of the board’s own
effectiveness first begun in April 2013
when it assessed its own effectiveness with
a mean score of 1.7 between the range of
1 (red-rated) and 4 (green rated). Progress
against its action plan has been considered
at regular meetings throughout 2014.

6

Audit
committee

Trust
executive
committee

Improving
working lives
committee

Access, equality
and diversity
group

Multi-professional
education and
training group

Clinical quality
and assurance
committee

Patient safety
and quality
committee

Health, safety and
risk committee

Charitable funds
committee

Information
governance
committee
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7

As Board members are expected to
attend at least 75% of board and
committee meetings in person, but if
unable to attend are expected to send
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Quality governance

a suitably briefed deputy able to make
decisions on their behalf. A record of
board members attendance at trust board
meetings is as follows:

2 May
2014

13
Jun
2014

11

25 Jul
2014

12
Sep
2014

24
Oct
2014

5
Dec
2014

6
Feb
2015

27
Mar
2015

PRESENT:
Mr Laurence Newman, Chairman

12

Ms Chrisha Alagaratnam, Interim Chief Executive Deputy Chief Executive/Director
of Finance and Performance
Ms Angela Bascombe, Interim Director of Finance
Ms Pat Baskerville, Vice Chair and Non-Executive Director
Dr Ruth Charlton, Joint Medical Director
Ms Pippa Hart, Chief Nurse
Dr James Marsh, Joint Medical Director
Dr Iain MacPhee, Non Executive Director
Mr Richard Noble, Non-Executive Director
Mr Steve Poulton, Non-Executive Director
Ms Jackie Sullivan, Chief Operating Officer
Rob Whiteford, Director of Finance

13

A Clinical Assurance Panel (CAP),
which reports to the Finance and
Contracting Group, reviews all service
improvement plans, service changes and
pathway redesigns to determine the
potential impact on quality, both in
terms of patient experience and clinical
outcomes and whose role is to assess any
negative impacts on clinical quality and
ensure these are mitigated.

18

The board receives a regular report
on all Serious Incidents following
scrutiny at the SI Panel. Serious Incidents
(SIs) are escalated to Executive level as
they occur, are reported weekly at the
Chief Executives meeting and through
the Patient Safety and Quality Committee
and Board.

Risk assessment

19

The following measures are in
place to ensure the trust identifies,
evaluates and controls risk:

A Risk Management Strategy which
outlines the trust’s strategic framework in
Our Quality Account reports to
relation to risk management; it describes
• Reports on never events and Serious
patients and the public about
the trust’s processes in managing risk
Incidents
the quality of trust services and a forward that supports the principles of integrated
• Reports and reviews including incidents, commitment to continuous evidence based governance and improving patient safety;
quality improvement. Feedback from
complaints and clinical audits
and outlines the responsibilities which staff
Healthwatch,
our
Health
Overview
and
must undertake and the procedures to
• The trust Quality Account
Scrutiny Committees at our local Councils’ follow in order to minimise risk and reduce
Performance against the national priorities is incorporated into the report.
harm. This strategy is supported by a Risk
set out in the NHS TDA Accountability
Assessment and Risk Register Procedure.
The Quality Account is reviewed
Framework for quality - caring, effective,
through our internal assurance
The Board Assurance Framework identifies
responsive, safe and well-led - is
processes;
by
the
Trust
Executive
the risks to the achievement of the trusts
monitored monthly at directorate,
Committee and the Patient Safety and
corporate objectives for 2014/15. The
trust and board level. A quality and
Quality Committee and is noted at our
Assurance Framework was reviewed on
performance scorecard reports against
Audit.
Our
Quality
Account
is
published
two occasions in the year by the Trust
each of the key performance indicators
on
NHS
Choices
website
and
the
trust
Executive Committee and trust board
(KPIs) across each of these domains.
website.
Each directorate has mechanisms to
There are rigorous processes in place to
An
independent
assurance
regularly identify, assess and review risks
ensure that the quality and accuracy of
engagement of the Quality
at directorate and service levels. Local risk
data is maintained. Two internal data
Account is undertaken by ourexternal
registers are maintained on which clinical
quality staff audit data to identify errors
auditors
Grant
Thornton
UK
LLP.
The
and non-clinical risks are recorded and
and make adjustments where data is
review
of
the
Quality
Account
for
reviewed on a monthly basis
found to be incorrectly recorded.
2013/14 confirmed that it was
Data quality is monitored through our
Risks which impact across directorates
compliant with relevant regulations and
Information Governance Committee.
are reviewed by the Health, Safety and
that the trust had good processes in place
Risk Committee and re reported up to the
The external National Referral to
for producing the report and concluded
Patient Safety and Quality Committee.
Treatment (RTT) Validation Team visited
there were good governance arrangements
the trust in February 2015 over 6 weeks
in place to manage performance. The
The Trust’s Risk Register is
to independently audit the accuracy of
Quality Account for 2014/15 is still
reviewed quarterly by the Trust
the trusts waiting lists. The trust was
subject to this external review.
Executive Committee and the Patient
commended for the very small number
Safety and Quality Committee. This
The reporting of Never Events is
of errors identified. The major risks to
identifies ‘extreme’ risks rated at 15 and
through our trust board within
the accuracy of waiting time data is data
above. All new extreme risks are reported
the public part of the meeting. The last
provided for patients transferred to the
to the weekly Executive meeting.
Never Event reported was in June 2013.
trust from other hospitals.
Themes were shared with the board in
As at 31st March 2015 the
The trust submits a monthly self
the context of needing to maintain patient
following extreme level risk
certification to the TDA against compliance confidentiality. The board has requested
was reported:
of the 11 conditions that Monitor uses
that all Never Events be reported publicly
• There is a risk that SWLEOC patients
and that the TDA considers relevant for
in future and considered in more detail
may have to wait longer for their
NHS trusts. A second return is made which privately as part of its review of all Serious
operations due to theatre staffing
comprises a further 14 statements related Incidents.
shortages and lack of theatre capacity
• Directorate reports to the Quality 		
Governance Committees

Ms Elizabeth Bishop, Non-Executive Director

14

15

IN ATTENDANCE:
Mr Kevin Croft, Director of People and Organisational Development
Mr Peter Davies, Director of Strategy, Planning and Performance
Mr Trevor Fitzgerald, Director of Estates, Facilities and Capital Projects

PART

Ms Rachel Royall, Director of Communications and Corporate Affairs
Ms Helena Reeves, Interim Director of Communications and Corporate Affairs
Mr Phil Ireland, Trust Secretary
Dr Martin Stockwell, Responsible Officer and Associate Medical Director

PART

8

9

• the detailed review of patient safety,
quality and clinical effectiveness
indicators including directorate
speciality presentations from the
Patient Safety and Quality Committee

Indicators of quality are
evidenced through:

• Quality dashboards at directorate and
trust level

Mr Daniel Elkeles, Chief Executive

The non-executive chair of each
board committee provides a set of
minutes to each trust board meeting
and gives a verbal report to the board
of the key decisions made and any
concerns addressed at each meeting. A
mechanism has been introduced in 2015
to ensure all non-executive directors are
informed of the work of all committees
and to enable cross-referencing of issues
between committees. Highlights of board
committee reports raised at trust board
meetings in 2014/15 have included:

The trust board approved a
Quality Strategy for 2014-2016
in March 2014 which set out the
framework and direction for delivering
and monitoring the quality of services
within the trust, describes the structures
for quality and setting out our ambitions,
priorities, reporting and monitoring for
quality.

to clinical quality, finance and governance
against which the TDA requires the board
to self-assess compliance. Any areas
of non-compliance are reported to our
trust board on each monthly return and
published on the trust’s website.

• tracking of the financial performance
and progress against quality and cost
improvement schemes from the Finance
and Service Improvement Committee
• operational performance, approval of
business cases and service improvement
initiatives, trust policies and reports
on external assessments from the Trust
Executive Committee
• Assurances from external audit, internal
audit, counter fraud, single tender 		
actions and losses and compensations
from the Audit Committee
• detailed review of the key people
indicators, workforce performance, staff
survey results and staff appraisals,
sickness absence and mandatory
training from the People and 		
Organisational Development Committee.

The board receives an annual
report from the chair of Audit
Committee and the chair of the Patient
Safety and Quality Committee on the
work of these committees throughout
the year which includes any issues and
concerns raised together with actions
taken to address these.

10

Each board Committee reviews
its terms of reference annually,
including its general purpose, its
membership, quoracy and frequency of
meetings. Attendance records of board
members are recorded in the minutes of
each meeting and published on the
trust’s website.

16

20

17

21

resulting in less than favourable
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outcomes for patients. High level risks
identified on the trust Risk Register are
mapped across to the capital planning
process and considered for capital
allocations to address any resource
requirements.
Newly identified in-year risks included:
• the risk to the delivery of high quality
care and a positive patient experience
due to the current condition and
infrastructure of the trust buildings
across all our services, and the current
high level of critical backlog
maintenance required.
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The internal audit report of the
arrangements for the self-assessment
against the Toolkit has provided
independent assurance to the trust as
to the reasonableness of the score and
supporting evidence. The report findings
provided significant assurance and raised
no issues that needed to be recorded in
this Annual Governance Statement.

The trust’s Senior Information Risk Owner
(SIRO) is an executive director on the trust
board, chairs the Information Governance
Committee, acts as champion for
information risk on the board and advises
to the Accountable Officer in regard to
• the risk of a shortage of an appropriately information risk.
trained and skilled workforce to
Throughout 2014/15 Dr Martin
manage the changes required to deliver
Stockwell has acted as Caldicott
the Clinical Strategy which will affect
Guardian responsible for protecting the
the quality of patient care and drive
confidentiality of patient and service-user
overspending.
information and enabling appropriate
information-sharing. Dr Stockwell attends
• the risk to the plan as a result of a
the Information Governance Committee
failure to achieve the cost reductions
and has reported throughout the year on
set out in the recovery plan leading to
data sharing requests.
not meeting our break even plan by
the end of the financial year and 		
beyond.
Risk and control framework
• Financial and operational pressures may
drive up costs and inefficiencies and
The Risk Management Strategy
impact on the provision of safe and
and the policies and procedures
affordable services into the future. The
which underpin it extend across both
risks to the achievement of the trusts
clinical and non-clinical areas of risk.
2015/16 corporate objectives are
These include incident reporting, root
currently being evaluated at the time
cause analysis and risk assessment systems
of writing.
supported by clear procedures. Evaluation
of risk takes place so that action plans
These risks will be reported on the Board
are implemented to eliminate or minimise
Assurance Framework. A similar process
risks. Existence of evidence based practice
will be undertaken for all other directorate
is incorporated into all aspects of patient
risks to be added to the trust Risk Register.
care and treatment by appropriately
trained healthcare professionals. The trust
encourages an open and honest culture
The Information Governance
which empowers staff to report incidents
Committee reports to the Patient
and to assess risks in a just and fair
Safety and Quality Committee to assure
environment.
the board on the soundness of information
Following publication of the
governance processes in place.
Robert Francis Report in February
The trust takes any data security risk
2013 the trust established four working
extremely seriously. A programme of
groups to address the recommendations
work via the Information Governance
within the Francis Report. The trust
Committee has monitored compliance
Executive Committee and trust board have
with the national Information Governance
received regular updates on the progress
Toolkit. The trust met compliance with
to ensure the embedding of a sustained
its submission for 2014/15 with a Level 2
change in culture, focusing on compassion,
score (green rated) of 72%.
candour and transparency.

23

22

24

25

The trust introduced the new
web-based Datix risk management
system across all modules in August 2014.
This integrated system covers incident
reporting, complaints, c claims, Coroner’s
inquests and the risk register. The new
system enables feedback to staff on actions
taken as a result of their report.

26

Trust revenue and capital plans are
financially risk assessed against
the investment allocated and reflected in
the trusts submission of its Annual Plan
to the NHS Trust Development Authority.
All proposed service developments and
cost improvement plans are reviewed by a
Clinical Assurance Panel (CAP) to ensure
there are no detrimental implications from
these on the quality of care to patients.

27

Fraud awareness campaigns
have included presentations to
management and frontline staff promoting
an anti-fraud culture and educating staff
on how to report fraud. A Counter Fraud
briefing is included at all staff inductions.
Counter Fraud drafted a number of articles
for staff communications on successful
fraud investigations undertaken.

28

Control mechanisms are in place
to ensure that all of the trust’s
obligations under equality, diversity and
human rights legislation are complied
with. The trust has an approved Single
Equality Scheme in place which includes an
equality impact assessment. All trust policies
and procedural documents and business
cases which involve service change are
subject to an equality impact assessment.
The board approved the Equality Delivery
System priorities in April 2012 and
published its Annual Equality Analysis
Report in March 2015.

29

The Board Assurance Framework
(BAF) informs the trust board on
the risks to the achievement of the trust’s
corporate objectives. In 2014/15 the trust
board reviewed the Assurance Framework
on two occasions and approved the risks
and mitigations reported.

30

The five overarching corporate
objectives for 2014/15 (below)
centred on commitment to continuously
improve the care we provide to our patients
whilst ensuring our services offer best value
for the taxpayer. We also set out how we
would ensure staff were well supported

is compliant with the statutory
three audits completed in 2014/15.
and able to do their job to the best of their
requirements
These were:
ability. We also set out our objective to
provide clarity on the long-term future and • Pharmacy Stock - JAC and Ledger
• Urgent and Emergency Care Peer Review
sustainability of our hospitals:
Report - a commissioner-led peer review
Reconciliation. Audit committee
of compliance with the London Quality
requested sight of the year-end physical
• Our patients
Standards. The St Helier site is currently
stock reconciliation with the book stock
• Our services
not compliant with 136 out of 174
valuation and this was provided at
• Our people
standards and an action plan has been
the March 2015 meeting where it was
• Our finances
prepared to address these issues
confirmed that the total difference was
£300. This difference had been written
• Our partners
• Staff Survey results for 2013 – these
off and a report would be circulated to
were reported to the board in March
For each risk identified on the
Audit members with details.
2014 and showed that since 2012 the
BAF and Risk Register, the
trust had improved in 11 scores, 17
• Links with non-trust organisations
following is reported:
scores remained the same, but no scores
Follow-up Review. Audit committee
• The pre-mitigated risk score (using
have deteriorated.
recommended that the Executive should
the 5 x 5 matrix)
review the level of funding to one
• Patient Lead Assessments of the Care
• The key controls in place to manage
specific non-trust organisation and
Environment (PLACE) – which reported
the risk
identify any other organisations where
favourably on the trusts standards
similar funding arrangements were
• The assurances that demonstrate the
for privacy and dignity, quality of food,
in place
effectiveness of the controls
cleanliness but less favourably on the
condition of the trusts buildings and
• Theatre Utilisation. This audit had been
• How the trust board receives these
environment.
requested by the trust. A new Theatres
assurances
Manager
had
recently
been
recruited
•
Local Counter Fraud reports.
• Gaps in assurances and remedial
and it was agreed to review progress
actions taken where there is a lack
(iv) The trust has a robust performance
in addressing the recommendations in
of effective control.
management framework in place.
the audit report in six months.
During 2014/15 directorate
The Care Quality Commission
ii) My review is also informed by the
performance has been reviewed
(CQC) made an unannounced
various reports presented to board
through monthly directorate 		
visit to St Helier Hospital and Queen
committees and the trust board
performance meetings. A directorate
Mary’s Hospital for Children on 6th
throughout the year including
specific scorecard is considered at
March 2014. The inspection team
performance against the national
each meeting and directorates are
reviewed compliance with Outcome
priorities for quality and governance as
held accountable for their standards
9: Management of Medicines and the
set out in the NHS TDA Accountability
of quality, performance and finance.
inspectors overall judgement was that,
Framework 2014/15.
at the time of inspection, both hospitals
(v) The trust is aware of its obligations
iii) It has also been informed by other
were fully meeting this standard.
under Section 92 of the Care Act
reports, including the trust’s registration
2014 which came into effect on 1st
status with the Care Quality Commission
April 2015 relating to false or
(without conditions). I have also been
Effectiveness of risk management and
misleading information.
informed by external inspections from:
internal controls
• Care Quality Commission (CQC)
As Accountable Officer, I have
Inspection Report – Management of
Significant Issues
responsibility for reviewing the
Medicines - met this standard in full
effectiveness of the system of internal
I am not reporting any significant
control. My review is informed in a number • Care Quality Commission (CQC) survey
issues in 2014/15 which have
of Accident and Emergency patients of ways:
prejudiced the achievement of the trusts
the Trust was amongst the best
priorities in 2014/15.
i) The Head of Internal Audit provides
performing trusts on three sections of
me with an opinion on the overall
the survey questionnaire and among the
arrangements for gaining assurance
best performing trusts for nine individual Accountable Officer:		
through the Assurance Framework and
questions. The trust was not among the Daniel Elkeles, Chief Executive
on the controls reviewed as part of the
worst performing trusts on any 		
Organisation: 			
Internal Audit Annual Plan. At the time
questions
Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals
of writing, it was anticipated that the
•
Register
of
external
inspections
report
–
NHS Trust
Head of Internal Audit (HoIA) would
this
report
identifies
all
external
give an overall assessment of reasonable
agency inspections
assurance on the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. Internal Audit • Chemical, Biological, Radiological and
Nuclear (CBRN) Assurance - the trust
gave ‘limited assurance’ opinions on
Date:

31

32

33

34
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STATEMENT OF THE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
RESPONSIBILITIES AS
THE ACCOUNTABLE
OFFICER OF THE TRUST

The Chief Executive of the NHS Trust
Development Authority has designated
that the Chief Executive should be the
Accountable Officer to the trust. The
relevant responsibilities of Accountable
Officers are set out in the Accountable
Officers Memorandum issued by the Chief
Executive of the NHS Trust Development
Authority. These include ensuring that:
- there are effective management systems
in place to safeguard public funds and
assets and assist in the implementation of
corporate governance;
- value for money is achieved from the
resources available to the trust;
- the expenditure and income of the trust
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has been applied to the purposes intended
by Parliament and conform to the authorities
which govern them;
- effective and sound financial management
systems are in place; and
- annual statutory accounts are prepared in a
format directed by the Secretary of State with
the approval of the Treasury to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs as at the
end of the financial year and the income and
expenditure, recognised gains and losses and
cash flows for the year.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I
have properly discharged the responsibilities
set out in my letter of appointment as an
Accountable Officer.

STATEMENT
OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE
ACCOUNTS

The directors are required under the
National Health Service Act 2006 to
prepare accounts for each financial year.
The Secretary of State, with the approval
of the Treasury, directs that these accounts
give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the trust and of the income and
expenditure, recognised gains and losses
and cash flows for the year. In preparing
those accounts, directors are required to:
- apply on a consistent basis accounting
policies laid down by the Secretary of
State with the approval of the Treasury;
- make judgements and estimates which
are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the trust and to
enable them to ensure that the accounts
comply with requirements outlined in the
above mentioned direction of the Secretary
of State. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the trust and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
The directors confirm to the best of their
knowledge and belief they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing
the accounts.
By order of the Board.

Daniel Elkeles
Chief Executive

Daniel Elkeles
Chief Executive

Rakesh Patel
Finance Director

4 June 2015

4 June 2015

4 June 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
DIRECTORS OF EPSOM AND ST HELIER
UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS NHS TRUST

We have audited the financial statements
of Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals
NHS trust for the year ended 31 March
2015 under the Audit Commission Act
1998. The financial statements comprise
the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the related notes. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and
the accounting policies directed by the
Secretary of State with the consent of the
Treasury as relevant to the National Health
Service in England.

Respective responsibilities of Directors based on, or materially inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the
and auditor
course of performing the audit. If we
As explained more fully in the Statement
become aware of any apparent material
of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect
misstatements or inconsistencies we
of the accounts, the Directors are
consider the implications for our report.
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
Opinion on financial statements
that they give a true and fair view. Our
responsibility is to audit and express
In our opinion the financial statements:
an opinion on the financial statements
• give a true and fair view of the financial
in accordance with applicable law and
position of Epsom and St Helier
International Standards on Auditing (UK
University Hospitals NHS trust as at 31
and Ireland). Those standards also require
March 2015 and of its expenditure and
us to comply with the Auditing Practices
income for the year then ended; and
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

We have also audited the information in
the Remuneration Report that is subject
to audit, being:

Scope of the audit of the financial
statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial
• the table of pension benefits of senior
statements are free from material
managers and related narrative notes
misstatement, whether caused by fraud
on pages 36 and 37
or error. This includes an assessment
• the table of pay multiples and related
of: whether the accounting policies are
narrative notes on page 38.
appropriate to the trust’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and
This report is made solely to the Board of
Directors of Epsom and St Helier University adequately disclosed; the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates
Hospitals NHS Trust in accordance with
made by the directors; and the overall
Part II of the Audit Commission Act
presentation of the financial statements.
1998 and for no other purpose, as set
In addition, we read all the financial and
out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of
non-financial information in the annual
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited
Bodies published by the Audit Commission report (which comprises Welcome, About
us, Priority one – Out patients, Priority two
in March 2014. To the fullest extent
– Our services, Priority three – Our people,
permitted by law, we do not accept or
Priority four – Our finances, Priority five –
assume responsibility to anyone other
Our future, Executive and non-executive
than the trust’s directors and the Trust as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, directors and the role of the trust board
and The accounts) to identify material
or for the opinions we have formed.
inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information
that is apparently materially incorrect
• the table of salaries and allowances
of senior managers and related
narrative notes on pages 33, 34 and 35

• have been prepared properly in
accordance with the accounting
policies directed by the Secretary of
State with the consent of the Treasury
as relevant to the National Health 		
Service in England.
Opinion on other matters
In our opinion:
• the part of the Remuneration Report
subject to audit has been prepared
properly in accordance with the
requirements directed by the Secretary
of State with the consent of the
Treasury as relevant to the National
Health Service in England; and
• the information given in the annual
report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared
is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we report by
exception
We report to you if:
• in our opinion the governance
statement does not reflect compliance
with the NHS Trust Development
Authority’s Guidance

us to report to you our conclusion
relating to proper arrangements, having
regard to relevant criteria specified by
the Audit Commission in October 2014.

We report if significant matters have
come to our attention which prevent us
from concluding that the trust has put in
place proper arrangements for securing
• we refer the matter to the Secretary
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
of State under section 19 of the Audit
its use of resources. We are not required
Commission Act 1998 because we have
to consider, nor have we considered,
reason to believe that the trust, or an
whether all aspects of the trust’s
officer of the trust, is about to make, or
arrangements for securing economy,
has made, a decision involving unlawful
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
expenditure, or is about to take, or has
resources are operating effectively.
taken, unlawful action likely to cause a
Scope of the review of arrangements
loss or deficiency; or
for securing economy, efficiency and
• we issue a report in the public interest
effectiveness in the use of resources
under section 8 of the Audit
Commission Act 1998.
We have nothing to report in these
respects.
Conclusion on the trust’s
arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of
resources.
Respective responsibilities of the
Trust and auditor

We have undertaken our review in
accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice, having regard to the guidance
on the specified criteria, published by
the Audit Commission in October 2014,
as to whether the trust has proper
arrangements for:
• securing financial resilience
• challenging how it secures economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard
to the guidance on the specified criteria
published by the Audit Commission in
October 2014, we are satisfied that in
all significant respects Epsom and
St Helier University Hospitals NHS trust
put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for
the year ending 31 March 2015.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the
audit of the accounts of Epsom and St
Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust in
accordance with the requirements of
the Audit Commission Act 1998 and
the Code of Audit Practice issued by the
Audit Commission.

Emily Hill
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK
LLP, Appointed Auditor
Grant Thornton House
Melton street
Euston Square

London NW1 2EP
The Audit Commission has determined
4 June 2015
The trust is responsible for putting in place these two criteria as those necessary for
proper arrangements to secure economy, us to consider under the Code of Audit
Practice in satisfying ourselves whether
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
the trust put in place proper arrangements
resources, to ensure proper stewardship
for securing economy, efficiency and
and governance, and to review regularly
effectiveness in its use of resources for
the adequacy and effectiveness of these
the year ended 31 March 2015.
arrangements.
We are required under Section 5 of the
Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy
ourselves that the trust has made proper
arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources. The Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission requires

We planned our work in accordance
with the Code of Audit Practice. Based
on our risk assessment, we undertook
such work as we considered necessary
to form a view on whether, in all
significant respects, the trust had put
in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources.

Annual report 2014-15

58/59

THE ACCOUNTS

Statement of Financial Position as at
31 March 2015

Statement of Comprehensive Income for year
ended 31 March 2015
2014/15

2013/14

		

Note

£000

£000

Gross employee benefits

10.1

(231,523)

(225,673)

Other operating costs

8

(139,125)

(140,560)

Revenue from patient care activities

5

339,987

326,063

Other operating revenue

6

25,782

29,947

(4,879)

(10,223)

		

Operating surplus/(deficit)
Investment revenue

12

24

36

Other gains and (losses)

13

5,087

(179)

Finance costs

14

(106)

Surplus/(deficit) for the financial year

The impairment and
adjustment in respect
of donated assets
relates to a reduction
in value of the trust
estate following its
5 yearly revaluation
exercise.
The notes on pages 63
to106 form part of this
account.

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Notes

£000

£000

Property, plant and equipment

15

177,298

169,179

Intangible assets

16

1,852

1,887

Trade and other receivables

22.1

202

115

179,352

171,181

		
		
Non-current assets:

Total non-current assets
Current assets:
Inventories

21

3,960

3,590

Trade and other receivables

22.1

20,423

25,333

(200)

Cash and cash equivalents

26

2,724

1,298

126

(10,566)

Sub-total current assets

Public dividend capital dividends payable

(5,084)

(4,768)

Non-current assets held for sale

Transfers by absorption - gains

0

0

Transfers by absorption - (losses)

0

0

Net Gain/(loss) on transfers by absorption

0

0

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

(4,958)

(15,334)

27,107

30,221

0

0

Total current assets

30,221

30,221

Total assets

206,459

201,402

(41,069)

27

Current liabilities

Other Comprehensive Income
Impairments and reversals taken to the revaluation reserve

(5,026)

0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment

19,402

2,586

Total comprehensive income for the year

9,418

(12,748)

Trade and other payables

28

(37,020)

Provisions

35

(1,071)

(499)

Borrowings

30

(39)

(3)

Total current liabilities

(38,130)

(41,571)

Net-current assets/(liabilities)

(11,023)

(11,350)

Total assets less current liabilities

168,329

159,831

Non-current liabilities
Financial performance for the year

Provisions

35

(2,667)

(4,066)

Borrowings

30

0

(1)

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

(4,958)

(15,334)

Total non-current liabilities

(2,667)

(4,067)

Impairments (excluding IFRIC 12 impairments)

4,631

8,225

Total Assets Employed:

165,662

155,764

Adjustments in respect of donated asset reserve elimination

405

(291)

Adjusted retained surplus/(deficit)

78

(7,400)
FINANCED BY: TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY
Public Dividend Capital

180,123

179,643

Retained earnings

(51,009)

(46,777)

Revaluation reserve

36,548

22,898

Other reserves

0

0

Total Taxpayers’ Equity:

165,662

155,764

The financial statements on pages 59 to 62 were approved by the Board on 1 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Daniel Elkeles
Chief Executive

Rakesh Patel
Finance Director

4 June 2015

4 June 2015

The notes on pages
63 to 106 form part of
this account.
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2015

Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2015
		
		
		

Public
Dividend
capital

Retained
earnings

Revaluation
reserve

Other
reserves

Total
reserves

		

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Balance at 1 April 2014

179,643

(46,777)

22,898

0

155,764

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15					
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

(4,958)

(4,958)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment

19,402

19,402

Impairments and reversals

(5,026)

(5,026)

Transfers between reserves

726

(726)

0

0

New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash

480

480

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year

480

(4,232)

13,650

0

9,898

Balance at 31 March 2015

180,123

(51,009)

36,548

0

165,662

					
Balance at 1 April 2013

167,551

(36,967)

25,836

0

156,420

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14					
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year

(15,334)

Net gain / (loss) on revaluation of property, plant, equipment

(15,334)
2,586

Transfers between reserves

5,524

(5,524)

2,586
0

0

New temporary and permanent PDC received - cash

18,092

18,092

New temporary and permanent PDC repaid in year

(6,000)

Net recognised revenue/(expense) for the year

12,092

(9,810)

(2,938)

0

(656)

Balance at 31 March 2014

179,643

(46,777)

22,898

0

155,764

(6,000)

		

Notes

		

2014/15

2013/14

£000

£000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities			
Operating surplus/(deficit)

(4,879)

(10,223)

Depreciation and amortisation

9,206

9,523

Impairments and reversals

4,631

8,225

Donated Assets received credited to revenue but non-cash

(103)

(787)

Interest paid

(54)

(59)

Dividend (paid)/refunded

(5,174)

(4,690)

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

(370)

48

(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables

4,754

(8,210)

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables

(1,992)

10,492

Provisions utilised

(429)

(2,303)

Increase/(Decrease) in movement in non-cash provisions

(450)

(2,922)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities

5,140

(906)

			
Cash Flows from Investing Activities			
Interest Received

24

(Payments) for Property, Plant and Equipment

(11,655)

(15,502)

(Payments) for Intangible Assets

(361)

(1,072)

Proceeds of disposal of assets held for sale (PPE)

7,763

12

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities

(4,229)

(16,526)

36

			
Net Cash Inform / (outflow) before Financing

911

(17,432)

			
Cash Flows from Financing Activities			
Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Received

480

18,092

Gross Temporary and Permanent PDC Repaid

0

(6,000)

Other Loans Received

188

0

Other Loans Repaid

(150)

(221)

Capital Element of Payments in Respect of Finance Leases

(3)

(4)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities

515

11,867

			
Net increase / (decrease) om cash and cash equivalents

1,426

(5,565)

			
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at Beginning of the Period
Cash and Cash Equivalents (and Bank Overdraft) at year end

26

1,298

6,863

2,724

1,298
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NOTES TO THE
ACCOUNTS
1

Accounting Policies
The Secretary of State for Health has directed that
the financial statements of NHS trusts shall meet
the accounting requirements of the Department
of Health Group Manual for Accounts, which shall
be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the
following financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the DH Group Manual for Accounts
2014-15 issued by the Department of Health. The
accounting policies contained in that manual follow
International Financial Reporting Standards to the
extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to
the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is
advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.
Where the Manual for Accounts permits a choice
of accounting policy, the accounting policy which
is judged to be most appropriate to the particular
circumstances of the trust for the purpose of giving
a true and fair view has been selected. The particular
policies adopted by the trust are described below.
They have been applied consistently in dealing with
items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1

1.2

1.3

The trust has reported a cumulative breakeven
position of (£26,480k) in 2014-15 and has failed
to meet its statutory breakeven duty over 3 and 5
years. Grant Thornton has written to the Secretary
of State for Health as required by statute to this
effect. The trust is in discussions with the NHS Trust
Development Authority (NTDA) with regards to its
Integrated Business Plan. The trust broke even during
2014-15 and is planning to do so in the future.
Iterations of the 2015-16 plan were submitted to the
NTDA in January, March and April 2015. The trust is
now working towards Foundation trust status.

Pooled Budgets
The trust is not party to any pooled budgets.

1.7

Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation uncertainty
These have been included with the appropriate
notes to the accounts.

For this reason the going concern basis has been
adopted for preparing the accounts.
1.4

Movement of assets within the DH Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be
accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line
with the Treasury FReM. The FReM does not require
retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions
(which have been accounted for under merger
accounting) have not been restated. Absorption
accounting requires that entities account for their
transactions in the period in which they took place,
with no restatement of performance required when
functions transfer within the public sector. Where
assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting
is recognised in the SOCNE/SOCNI, and is disclosed
separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the
Group are accounted for in line with IAS20 and
similarly give rise to income and expenditure entries.

Acquisitions and discontinued operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if
they are taken on from outside the public sector.
Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only
if they cease entirely. They are not considered to
be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public
sector body to another.

For transfers of assets and liabilities from those NHS
bodies that closed on 1 April 2013, Treasury agreed
that a modified absorption approach should be
applied. For these transactions and only in the priorperiod, gains and losses are recognised in reserves
rather than the SOCNE/SOCNI.
1.5

Charitable Funds
The trust did not consolidate the NHS charitable
funds for which it is a corporate Trustee as the Epsom
and St Helier NHS trust Charitable Fund’s income,
resources, assets and liabilities are not material
for the year ended 31 March 2015. The directors
have assessed the impact of not consolidating the
accounts of its related Charity and deemed it to be
immaterial and not adversely affect the interpretation
of the accounts by its stakeholders. This is consistent
with Note 1.33

1.8

In the application of the NHS trust’s accounting
policies, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from those estimates and the
estimates and underlying assumptions are continually
reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Whilst the trust faces some medium term uncertainty
regarding the configuration of its services and
must meet challenging efficiency targets, there is
no decision to liquidate the entity or cease trading.
The trust has submitted an Operating plan for
2015-16 predicting improved underlying financial
performance.

Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the
historical cost convention modified to account for
the revaluation of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Going Concern
IAS 1 requires management to assess, as part of
the accounts preparation process, the trust’s ability
to continue as a going concern. In the context
of non-trading entities in the public sector the
anticipated continuation of the provision of a service
in the future is normally sufficient evidence of going
concern. The financial statements should be prepared
on a going concern basis unless there are plans for,
or no realistic alternative other than, the dissolution
of the trust without the transfer of its services to
another entity.

1.6

1.7.1

1.7.1

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below) that
management has made in the process of applying
the NHS trust’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other, key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year:
• Property Plant and Equipment have lives and
values based on estimates carried out by
professional valuers. This is described fully in the
relevant note
• Accruals and deferred income are based on best
estimates of the expenditure still to be incurred for
this financial year and the income received which
in fact relates to next financial year
• Provisions are all based on the best estimates of
future payments that will need to be made to meet
current obligations. The basis of these estimates
and the timing of the cash flows are described in
the relevant note
• Pension fund valuations and settlements are
estimated using guidelines set out by NHS Business
Authority. The basis is set out in the relevant note
• Inventories were also estimated and this has been
disclosed accordingly under the relevant note.

Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised
when, and to the extent that, performance occurs,
and is measured at the fair value of the consideration
receivable. The main source of revenue for the trust
is from commissioners for healthcare services.
Revenue relating to patient care spells that are partcompleted at the year end are apportioned across the
financial years on the basis of length of stay at the
end of the reporting period compared to expected
total length of stay.
Where income is received for a specific activity that
is to be delivered in the following year, that income
is deferred.
The NHS trust receives income under the NHS Injury
Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost
of treating injured individuals to whom personal
injury compensation has subsequently been paid e.g.
by an insurer. The NHS trust recognises the income
when it receives notification from the Department
of Work and Pension’s Compensation Recovery Unit
that the individual has lodged a compensation claim.
The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the
treatments provided to the injured individual, less a
provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and
doubtful debts.

1.9

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments
are recognised in the period in which the service is
received from employees. The cost of leave earned
but not taken by employees at the end of the period
is recognised in the financial statements to the extent
that employees are permitted to carry forward leave
into the following period.
Retirement benefit costs
Past and present employees are covered by the
provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme
is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers
NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies,
allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State,
in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed
to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to
identify their share of the underlying scheme assets
and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for
as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost
to the Trust of participating in the scheme is taken as
equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for
the accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill
health the additional pension liabilities are not
funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability
for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at
the time the trust commits itself to the retirement,
regardless of the method of payment.
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1.10 Other expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and
to the extent that, the goods or services have been
received. They are measured at the fair value of the
consideration payable.

HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach
to depreciated replacement cost valuations based
on modern equivalent assets and, where it would
meet the location requirements of the service being
provided, an alternative site can be valued.

1.11 Property, plant and equipment

Properties in the course of construction for service
or administration purposes are carried at cost, less
any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees
but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as
expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for
assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and
depreciation commences when they are brought
into use.

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
• it is held for use in delivering services or for
administrative purposes
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to, or service potential will be supplied to the trust
• it is expected to be used for more than one
financial year
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably and
• the item has cost of at least £5,000 or
• Collectively, a number of items have a cost of
at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of
more than £250, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous
purchase dates, are anticipated to have
simultaneous disposal dates and are under single
managerial control or
• Items form part of the initial equipping and settingup cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective
of their individual or collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes
a number of components with significantly different
asset lives, the components are treated as separate
assets and depreciated over their own useful
economic lives.
Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured
initially at cost, representing the cost directly
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and
bringing it to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. All assets are measured subsequently
at fair value.
Land and buildings used for the trust’s services or for
administrative purposes are stated in the statement
of financial position at their revalued amounts, being
the fair value at the date of revaluation less any
impairment.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially
different from those that would be determined
at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are
determined as follows:
• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value
for existing use
• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated
historic cost as this is not considered to be materially
different from fair value.
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the
revaluation reserve except when it reverses an
impairment for the same asset previously recognised in
expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure
to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss
of economic value or service potential is recognised
as an impairment charged to the revaluation reserve
to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for
the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment
losses that arise from a clear consumption of
economic benefit should be taken to expenditure.
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve
are reported as other comprehensive income in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Subsequent expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an
asset beyond its original specification, the directly
attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent
expenditure restores the asset to its original
specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any
existing carrying value of the item replaced is writtenout and charged to operating expenses.
1.12 Intangible assets
Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without
physical substance, which are capable of sale
separately from the rest of the trust’s business or
which arise from contractual or other legal rights.
They are recognised only when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to, or service
potential be provided to, the trust; where the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the
cost is at least £5000.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to
the operating of hardware, for example an operating
system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of

property, plant and equipment. Software that is not
integral to the operation of hardware, for example
application software, is capitalised as an intangible
asset. Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is
recognised as an operating expense in the period in
which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:
• the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use
• the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use it
• the ability to sell or use the intangible asset
• how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits or service potential
• the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the intangible asset
and sell or use it
• the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its 		
development.
Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internallygenerated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria
above are initially met. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is
recognised in the period in which it is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at fair value by reference to an active market,
or, where no active market exists, at amortised
replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis),
indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair
value. Internally-developed software is held at historic
cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in
development costs and technological advances.
1.13 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and
assets held for sale are not depreciated.
Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged
to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant
and equipment and intangible non-current assets,
less any residual value, over their estimated useful
lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of
economic benefits or service potential of the assets.
The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over
which the NHS trust expects to obtain economic
benefits or service potential from the asset. This is
specific to the NHS trust and may be shorter than the
physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives
and residual values are reviewed each year end, with
the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective
basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

At each reporting period end, the NHS trust checks
whether there is any indication that any of its tangible
or intangible non-current assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment
loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
to determine whether there has been a loss and,
if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment annually.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from
a loss of economic value or service potential is
recognised as an impairment charged to the
revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a
balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter,
to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from
a clear consumption of economic benefit should
be taken to expenditure. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the
recoverable amount but capped at the amount that
would have been determined had there been no
initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment
loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the
decrease previously charged there and thereafter to
the revaluation reserve.
Impairments are analysed between Departmental
Expenditure Limits (DEL) and Annually Managed
Expenditure (AME). This is necessary to comply with
Treasury’s budgeting guidance. DEL limits are set in
the Spending Review and Departments may not
exceed the limits that they have been set.
AME budgets are set by the Treasury and may be
reviewed with departments in the run-up to the
Budget. Departments need to monitor AME closely
and inform Treasury if they expect AME spending
to rise above forecast. Whilst Treasury accepts that
in some areas of AME inherent volatility may mean
departments do not have the ability to manage the
spending within budgets in that financial year, any
expected increases in AME require Treasury approval.
1.14 Donated assets
Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their
fair value on receipt, with a matching credit to
Income. They are valued, depreciated and impaired
as described above for purchased assets. Gains and
losses on revaluations, impairments and sales are
as described above for purchased assets. Deferred
income is recognised only where conditions
attached to the donation preclude immediate
recognition of the gain.
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1.15 Government grants
The value of assets received by means of a
government grant are credited directly to income.
Deferred income is recognised only where
conditions attached to the grant preclude immediate
recognition of the gain.
1.16 Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met when the sale is
highly probable, the asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition and management is
committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification. Non-current assets held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Fair
value is open market value including alternative uses.
The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. On disposal, the balance for
the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to
retained earnings.
Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped
or demolished does not qualify for recognition as held
for sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset
and its economic life is adjusted. The asset is derecognised when it is scrapped or demolished.
1.17 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
The trust as lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance
leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the
lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value
of the minimum lease payments, with a matching
liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in
calculating the trust’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability
and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and
building components are separated and individually
assessed as to whether they are operating or finance
leases.
The NHS trust as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recorded as receivables at the amount of the NHS
trust’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the trust’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
1.18 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions
The Trust did not have any PFI transactions for the year
ended 31 March 2015.
1.19 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula.
This is considered to be a reasonable approximation
to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.
1.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial
institution repayable without penalty on notice of
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and that form an integral part
of the NHS trust’s cash management.
1.21 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the NHS trust
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the NHS
trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows using HM
Treasury’s discount rate of 2.2% in real terms (1.3%
for employee early departure obligations).

When some or all of the economic benefits required
to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an
asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.

within the control of the NHS trust, or a present
obligation that is not recognised because it is not
probable that a payment will be required to settle the
obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is
disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the
trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in
those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it. The measurement
of a restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, which
are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed
by the restructuring and not associated with ongoing
activities of the entity.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the NHS trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where
an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.22 Clinical negligence costs
The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a
risk pooling scheme under which the trust pays an
annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return
settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution
is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is
administratively responsible for all clinical negligence
cases the legal liability remains with the NHS trust.
The total value of clinical negligence provisions carried
by the NHSLA on behalf of the trust is disclosed at
note 35.
1.23 Non-clinical risk pooling
The NHS trust participates in the Property Expenses
Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme.
Both are risk pooling schemes under which the NHS
trust pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation
Authority and, in return, receives assistance with
the costs of claims arising. The annual membership
contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of
particular claims are charged to operating expenses as
and when they become due.
1.24 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)
CRC and similar allowances are accounted for as
government grant funded intangible assets if they are
not expected to be realised within twelve months,
and otherwise as other current assets. They are
valued at open market value. As the NHS body makes
emissions, a provision is recognised with an offsetting
transfer from deferred income. The provision is settled
on surrender of the allowances. The asset, provision
and deferred income amounts are valued at fair value
at the end of the reporting period.
1.25 Contingencies
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly

Where the time value of money is material,
contingencies are disclosed at their present value.
1.26 Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised when the NHS trust
becomes party to the financial instrument contract
or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods
or services have been delivered. Financial assets
are derecognised when the contractual rights have
expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss; held to maturity investments; available for
sale financial assets, and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition.
Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and
characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts
with embedded derivatives whose separate value
cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at
fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised
in calculating the NHS trust’s surplus or deficit for the
year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest
earned on the financial asset.
Held to maturity investments
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition,
they are held at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method. The
trust did not hold any held to maturity investments at
31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: £nil).
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Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available for
sale or that do not fall within any of the other three
financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair
value with changes in value taken to the revaluation
reserve, with the exception of impairment losses.
Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/
deficit on de-recognition. The trust did not hold any
available for sale financial assets at 31 March 2015
(31 March 2014: £nil).
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments which
are not quoted in an active market. After initial
recognition, they are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective
interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted
market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation
techniques.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair
value of the financial asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the NHS trust
assesses whether any financial assets, other than
those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’
are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and
impairment losses recognised if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events which occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset and which has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest
rate. The loss is recognised in expenditure and the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a
provision for impairment of receivables.
1.27 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement
of financial position when the NHS trust becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when
the goods or services have been received. Financial
liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has
been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid
or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised
at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are
initially recognised at fair value.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently
measured at the higher of:
• The premium received (or imputed) for entering into
the guarantee less cumulative amortisation
• The amount of the obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
The trust did not hold any financial guarantee contract
liabilities at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: £nil).
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and
characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with
embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be
ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss. They are held at fair value, with
any resultant gain or loss recognised in the NHS trust’s
surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any
interest payable on the financial liability. The trust did not
hold any financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014: £nil).
Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, except for loans from Department of Health,
which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the life of the asset, to the
net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is
recognised using the effective interest method.
1.28 Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the trust are outside the scope of
VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input
tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is
charged to the relevant expenditure category or included
in the capitalised purchase cost of property, plant, and
equipment. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is
recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.29 Foreign currencies
The trust’s functional currency and presentational
currency is sterling. Transactions denominated in a
foreign currency are translated into sterling at the
exchange rate ruling on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
spot exchange rate on 31 March. Resulting exchange
gains and losses for either of these are recognised in the
trust’s surplus/deficit in the period in which they arise.
1.30 Third party assets
Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on
behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts
since the trust has no beneficial interest in them. Details
of third party assets are given in Note 44 to the accounts.

1.31 Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividend
Public dividend capital represents taxpayers’ equity in
the NHS trust. At any time the Secretary of State can
issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from,
the trust. PDC is recorded at the value received. As PDC
is issued under legislation rather than under contract, it
is not treated as an equity financial instrument.
An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised
by the trust, is payable to the Department of Health
as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the real rate set by HM Treasury (currently
3.5%) on the average carrying amount of all assets less
liabilities (except for donated assets and cash balances
with the Government Banking Service). The average
carrying amount of assets is calculated as a simple
average of opening and closing relevant net assets.
1.32 Losses and Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament
would not have contemplated when it agreed funds
for the health service or passed legislation. By their
nature they are items that ideally should not arise.
They are therefore subject to special control procedures
compared with the generality of payments. They are
divided into different categories, which govern the way
that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant
functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis,
including losses which would have been made good
through insurance cover had the trust not been bearing
their own risks (with insurance premiums then being
included as normal revenue expenditure).
1.33 Subsidiaries
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the
power to exercise control are classified as subsidiaries
and are consolidated. The NHS trust has control when it
is exposed to or has rights to variable returns through its
power over another entity. The income and expenses;
gains and losses; assets, liabilities and reserves; and
cash flows of the subsidiary are consolidated in full into
the appropriate financial statement lines. Appropriate
adjustments are made on consolidation where the
subsidiary’s accounting policies are not aligned with the
NHS trust or where the subsidiary’s accounting date is
not co-terminus.
Subsidiaries that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount or
‘fair value less costs to sell’. The trust does not have
any subsidiaries.
1.34 Associates
Material entities over which the NHS trust has the
power to exercise significant influence so as to obtain
economic or other benefits are classified as associates
and are recognised in the NHS trust’s accounts using
the equity method. The investment is recognised initially
at cost and is adjusted subsequently to reflect the NHS

trust share of the entity’s profit/loss and other gains/
losses. It is also reduced when any distribution is
received by the NHS trust from the entity.
Associates that are classified as ‘held for sale’ are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount or
‘fair value less costs to sell’. The Trust does not have
any associates.
1.35 Joint arrangements
Material entities over which the NHS trust has
joint control with one or more other entities are
classified as joint arrangements. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint
operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation exists where the parties that have
joint control have rights to the assets and obligations
for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. Where
the NHS body is a joint operator it recognises its share
of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own
accounts.
A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
Joint ventures are recognised as an investment and
accounted for using the equity method. The Trust
does not have any joint arrangements,
1.36 Research and Development
Research and development expenditure is charged
against income in the year in which it is incurred,
except insofar as development expenditure relates
to a clearly defined project and the benefits of it
can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure
so deferred is limited to the value of future benefits
expected and is amortised through the SOCNE/SOCI
on a systematic basis over the period expected to
benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the
basis of current cost. The amortisation is calculated on
the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis.
1.37 Accounting Standards that have been issued but
have not yet been adopted
The Treasury FReM does not require the following
Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 201415. The application of the Standards as revised would
not have a material impact on the accounts for 201415, were they applied in that year:
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - subject to consultation
- subject to consultation
• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - subject to
consultation
• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Annual report 2014-15

70/71

THE ACCOUNTS

2 Pooled budgets
The trust has not been a party to pooled budgets either
in the financial year to 31 March 2015 or financial year
to 31 March 2014.

3 Operating segments
The trust has identified only one operating segment,
that of Health Care activities. It has done this as this
is the basis on which it reports to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker and all its activities face the same level
of business risk

		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£000s

£000s

Income received from Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England for the
provision of Patient Care Services

332,972

320,066

No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of the trusts income. Note 5 provides a detailed breakdown of the
amount disclosed above. All Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England are considered as one customer as they are
under common control.

6 Other operating revenue
		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£000s

£000s

Education, training and research

15,574

16,237

Charitable and other contributions to revenue expenditure - NHS

180

242

Receipt of non-cash donations (i.e. physical assets) for capital acquisitions)

103

787

Non-patient care services to other bodies

1,994

2,494

Income generation

4,785

5,821

Rental revenue from finance leases

0

0

Rental revenue from operating leases

0

0

Other revenue

3,146

4,366

Total Other operating revenue

25,782

29,947

365,769

356,010

		
Total operating revenue

4 Income generation activities
The trust undertakes income generation activities
with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in

patient care. The following provides details of income
generation activities whose full cost exceeded £1m or
was otherwise material.

7 Overseas Visitors Disclosure

		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£000s

£000s

		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£000s

£000s

Income recognised during 2014-15 (invoiced amounts and accruals)

388

379

Cash payments received in-year (re receivables at 31 March 2014)

0

0

Cash payments received in-year (iro invoices issued 2014-15)

388

0

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (re receivables at 31 March 2014)

0

0

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables (iro invoices issued 2014-15)

0

0

Amounts written off in-year (irrespective of year of recognition)

0

0

Income

3,018

2,365

Less full cost

2,375

1,589

Surplus/(deficit)

643

776

5 Revenue from patient care activities
		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£000s

£000s

NHS Trusts

337

690

NHS England

53,639

49,901

Clinical Commissioning Groups

279,333

270,165
631

Foundation Trusts

761

Department of Health

0

0

NHS Other (including Public Health England and Prop Co)

273

147

Non-NHS: 		
Local Authorities

477

0

Private patients

3,635

3,155

Overseas patients (non-reciprocal)

388

379

Injury costs recovery

1,031

953

Other
Total Revenue from patient care activities
Injury costs recovery costs are provided for at a rate of 18.9% (2013-14: 15.8%).

113

42

339,987

326,063
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8 Operating expenses
		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£000s

£000s
2,791

Services from other NHS Trusts

2,784

Services from CCGs/NHS England

3

8

Services from other NHS bodies

0

215

Services from NHS Foundation Trusts

5,261

4,158

Total Services from NHS bodies

8,048

7,172

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies

6,231

5,092

Trust Chair and Non-executive Directors

63

59

Supplies and services - clinical

65,501

65,170

Supplies and services - general

10,954

11,485

Consultancy services

1,215

1,289

Establishment

3,006

2,845

Transport

5,474

4,991

Business rates paid to local authorities

0

Premises

14,230

14,876

Hospitality

8

8

Insurance

38

37

Legal Fees

600

384

Impairments and Reversals of Receivables

0

324

Depreciation

8,660

9,187

Amortisation

546

336

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment

4,631

8,225

Audit fees

104

84

Other auditor’s remuneration

10

10

Clinical negligence

7,382

7,297

Research and development (excluding staff costs)

16

4

Education and Training

1,057

1,241

Other

1,351

444

Total Operating expenses (excluding employee benefits)

139,125

140,560

9 Operating Leases
During 2014-15 and 2013-14 the trust leased buildings
and other assets to provide healthcare to its patients.
The most significant of these leases were the lease of

Woodcote Lodge, for staff accommodation in Epsom,
and Manorgate House in Kingston which was used for
the provision of renal services.

9.1 Trust as lessee
		

2014-15

		

Land

Buildings

Other

Total

2013-14

		

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Payments recognised as an expense:					
Minimum lease payments				

463

432

Contingent rents				

0

0

Sub-lease payments				

0

0

					

463

432

Total Payable:					
No later than one year

16

446

6

468

170

Between one and five years

64

0

10

74

64

After five years

608

0

0

608

624

Total

688

446

16

1,150

858

0

0

					
Total future sublease payments expected to be received:				

9.2 Trust as lessor
During the financial year the trust has not leased or sub
leased any asset to a third party.

Employee Benefits		
Employee benefits excluding Board members

230,412

224,461

Board members

1,111

1,212

Total Employee Benefits

231,523

225,673

10.1 Employee Benefits

		
Total Operating Expenses

10 Employee benefits and staff numbers

370,648

366,233

		

2014-15

Audit Fees

2013-14

Total

Permanently
Employed

Other

Total

Permanently
Employed

Other

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Salaries and wages

196,848

158,845

38,003

191,750

157,105

34,645

Social security costs

15,847

14,236

1,611

14,935

13,449

1,486

Employer Contributions to NHS BSA - Pensions Division

20,282

19,167

1,115

20,194

19,128

1,066

Other pension costs

0

0

0

9

7

2

Termination benefits

0

0

0

0

0

0

Other auditor’s remuneration		

Total employee benefits

232,977

192,248

40,729

226,888

189,689

37,199

Audit of Quality Accounts (the charge for 2014-15 is estimated)

10

10

Employee costs capitalised

1,454

1,454

0

1,215

807

408

		

10

10

190,794

40,729

225,673

188,882

36,791

Audit Commission (rebate)

(11)

(15)

Grant Thornton

115

99

		

104

84

Grant Thornton was appointed Auditor of the Trust during the year following the
		
abolition of the Audit Commission. For the period ended 31 March 2015 the analysis
of Audit fees is as set out above.

Gross Employee Benefits excluding capitalised costs 231,523
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10.2 Staff numbers

2014-15
Total

Medical and dental

2013-14
Permanently
Employed

Other

Total

Number

Number

Number

Number

734

642

92

696

Ambulance staff

0

0

0

0

Administration and estates

1,099

931

168

1,010

Healthcare assistants & other support staff

944

663

281

1,021

Nursing, midwifery & health visiting staff

1,694

1,418

276

1,716

Nursing, midwifery & health visiting learners

0

0

0

0

Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff

362

327

35

354

Social Care staff

0

0

0

0

Other

0

0

0

2

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS Pension scheme. Exit costs in this note are
accounted for in full in the year of departure. Where the Trust has agreed early retirements, the additional costs are met by the Trust and not
by the NHS pensions scheme. Ill-health retirement costs are met by the NHS pensions scheme and are not included in the table.			
						
This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year. Note: The expense associated with these departures has been
recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

10.4 Exit packages - Other
Departures analysis

2014-15
Agreements
Number

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs 0

2013-14
Total value of
agreements

Agreements

Total value of
agreements

£000s

Number

£000s

0

23

1,954

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs

0

0

0

0

Total staff numbers
4,833
3,981
852
4,797
				

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

0

0

0

0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice

0

0

0

0

Of the above - staff engaged on capital projects

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders

0

0

0

0

Total

0

0

23

1,954

21

9

12

23

This disclosure reports the number and value of exit packages agreed in the year. Note: the expense associated with these departures may
have been recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

10.3 Exit Packages agreed
for staff

As a single exit package can be made up of several components each of which will be counted separately in this Note, the total number above
will not necessarily match the total numbers in Note 10.4 which will be the number of individuals.

2014-15
Exit /package cost band
(including any special payment element)

The Remuneration Report includes disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

Number of
compulsory
redundancies,

Number of other
departures agreed,

Total number of
exit packages by
cost band,

Number

Number

Number

10.5 Sickness Absences

Less than £10,000

0

0

0

		

2014/15

2013/14

£10,001 - £25,000

0

0

0

		

Number

Number

£25,001 - £50,000

0

0

0

£50,001 - £100,000

0

0

0

Total Days Lost

40,199

40,722

£100,001 - £150,000

0

0

0

Total Staff Years

3,955

3,925

£150,001 - £200,000

0

0

0

Average working Days Lost

10

10

>£200,000

0

0

0

Total number of exit packages by type (total cost

0

0

0

Total resource cost (£000s)

0

0

0

Number of
compulsory
redundancies,

Number of other
departures agreed,

Total number of
exit packages by
cost band,

		

2014/15

2013/14

		

Number

Number

Number

Number

Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds

7

13

£000s

£000s

315

399

10.6 Retirements due to ill-health

2013-14
Exit /package cost band
(including any special payment element)

Less than £10,000

0

1

1

£10,001 - £25,000

0

2

2

£25,001 - £50,000

0

3

3

£50,001 - £100,000

0

7

7

£100,001 - £150,000

0

9

9

£150,001 - £200,000

0

1

1

>£200,000

0

0

0

Total number of exit packages by type (total cost

0

23

23

Total resource cost (£000s)

0

1,954

1,954

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year
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10.7 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the
provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of
the benefits payable under these provisions can
be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.
nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded,
defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers,
GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and
Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a
way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were
a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS
Body of participating in the scheme is taken as equal
to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations
recognised in the financial statements do not differ
materially from those that would be determined at
the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation,
the FReM requires that the period between formal
valuations shall be four years, with approximate
assessments in intervening years”. An outline of
these follows:
a) Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out
annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the
reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment
for the previous accounting period in conjunction
with updated membership and financial data for
the current reporting period, and are accepted as
providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting
purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31
March 2015, is based on valuation data as 31 March
2014, updated to 31 March 2015 with summary
global member and accounting data. In undertaking
this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed
in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also
been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme
is contained in the scheme actuary report, which
forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme
(England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published
annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS
Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from
The Stationery Office.
b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the
level of liability in respect of the benefits due
under the scheme (taking into account its recent
demographic experience), and to recommend the
contribution rates.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for
the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year
ending 31 March 2012.

The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates
to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with
the consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of
the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate
employee and employer representatives as deemed
appropriate.
c) Scheme provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits,
which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative
guide only, and is not intended to detail all the
benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific
conditions that must be met before these benefits
can be obtained:
The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual
pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the
1995 section and of the best of the last three years
pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th
for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of
membership. Members who are practitioners as
defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual
pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over
the relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose
to give up some of their annual pension for an
additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum
amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new
provision is known as “pension commutation”.
Annual increases are applied to pension payments
at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971,
and are based on changes in retail prices in the
twelve months ending 30 September in the previous
calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) has been used and replaced the Retail
Prices Index (RPI).
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement,
is available to members of the scheme who are
permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties
effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity
of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in
service, and five times their annual pension for death
after retirement is payable.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health
the additional pension liabilities are not funded by
the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the
additional costs is charged to the employer.
Members can purchase additional service in the
NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s
run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other
Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions
(FSAVC) providers.

11 Better Payment Practice Code

2014-15
Number

2013-14
£’000

Number

£’000

Non-NHS Payables				
Invoices Paid in the Year

85,961

133,307

88,652

Invoices Paid Within Target

59,183

95,545

86,002

131,191
126,389

Invoices Paid Within Target - %

68.8%

71.7%

97.0%

96.3%

					
NHS Payables				
Invoices Paid in the Year

3,649

18,171

3,071

24,913

Invoices Paid Within Target

3,313

16,170

2,810

19,929

Invoices Paid Within Target - %

90.8%

89.0%

91.5%

80.0%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the
due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

11.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
The trust has no amounts paid or payable under this legislation
(2013-14: £nil).

12 Investment
Revenue
		

2014/15

2013/14

		

£’000

£’000

Bank interest

24

36

13 Other
		Gains and Losses

2014/15

2013/14

		

£’000

£’000

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets other than by sale (PPE)

(146)

(179)

Gain (Loss) on disposal of assets held for sale

5,233

0

Total

5,087

(179)

2014/15

2013/14

£’000

£’000

Further detail on the gain on disposal is provided in Note 15.3 below.

14 Finance
		 Costs
		

Interest		
Interest on loans and overdrafts

54

57

Interest on obligations under finance leases

0

66

Total interest expense

54

123

Provisions - unwinding of discount

52

77

Total

106

200
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15.1 Property, plant and equipment

2014-15

15.2 Property, plant and equipment

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction
& payments
on account

Plant &
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
technology

Furniture
&
fittings

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Cost or valuation:									
At 1 April 2014

37,369

151,039

409

Additions of Assets Under Construction

13,307

33,107

6

8,479

1,352

1,215

Additions Purchased

0

5,411

0

Additions - Non Cash Donations (i.e. physical assets)
Reclassifications

0
0

0
71

0
0

0
(1,107)

2013-14

Land

Buildings
excluding
dwellings

Dwellings

Assets under
construction
& payments
on account

Plant &
machinery

Transport
equipment

Information
technology

Furniture
&
fittings

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Cost or valuation:									
245,068

At 1 April 2013

1,215

Additions of Assets Under Construction

35,105

143,230

409

10,753

31,729

0

8,825

1,352

2,704

1,906

0

926

0

8,243

Additions Purchased

0

7,348

0

103
736

0
0

0
138

0
0

103
(162)

Additions - Purchases from Cash Donations &
Government Grants

0

220

0

147

231,403
2,704

2,198

6

397

0

9,949

407

0

0

0

774

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals

(1,612)

(585)

(53)

0

0

0

0

0

(2,250)

Reclassifications

0

297

0

(297)

0

0

0

0

0

Disposals other than for sale

0

0

0

0

(1,702)

(6)

0

0

(1,708)

Disposals other than for sale

0

(56)

0

0

(1,790)

0

(743)

0

(2,589)

Upward revaluation/positive indexation

6,209

12,692

501

0

0

0

0

0

19,402

Revaluation

2,264

0

0

0

563

0

0

0

2,827

Impairments/negative indexation

(2,614)

(2,412)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(5,026)

At 31 March 2014

37,369

151,039

409

13,307

33,107

6

8,479

1,352

245,068

1,352

264,885

									

At 31 March 2015
39,352
166,216
857
13,415
34,150
0
9,543
								

Depreciation									

Depreciation									
At 1 April 2014

2,885

46,721

213

0

18,017

0

6,733

1,320

75,889

At 1 April 2013

0

35,259

191

Disposals other than for sale

0

(7)

0

0

Reclassifications

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Revaluation

0

0

0

Reclassifications as Held for Sale and reversals

0

(28)

(2)

0

0

0

0

(30)

Impairments/negative indexation charged to
operating expenses

2,885

8,168

0

0
0

Disposals other than for sale

0

0

0

Impairments

4,508

123

0

Charged During the Year

0

5,374

50

At 31 March 2015

7,393

52,190

261

0
0

(1,562)

(1)

0

0

(1,563)

0

0

0

0

4,631

Reversal of Impairments charged to operating expenses

0

(2,828)

0

2,676

1

552

7

8,660

Charged During the Year

0

6,129

22

19,131

0

7,285

1,327

87,587

At 31 March 2014

2,885

46,721

213

									
Net Book Value at 31 March 2015

31,959

114,026

596

13,415

15,019

0

2,258

25

0

17,077

0

6,979

1,180

60,686

(1,712)

0

(731)

0

(2,450)

241

0

0

0

241

0

0

0

0

11,053

0

0

0

0

(2,828)

2,411

0

485

140

9,187

18,017

0

6,733

1,320

75,889

									
177,298

									

Net Book Value at 31 March 2014

34,484

104,318

196

13,307

15,090

6

1,746

32

169,179

									

Asset financing:									

Asset financing:									

Owned - Purchased

31,959

109,631

596

13,415

13,512

0

2,251

25

171,389

Owned - Purchased

34,484

99,946

196

13,160

13,390

6

1,702

32

162,916

Owned - Donated

0

4,395

0

0

1,505

0

7

0

5,907

Owned - Donated

0

4,372

0

147

1,695

0

21

0

6,235

Held on finance lease

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

2

Held on finance lease

0

0

0

0

5

0

23

0

28

Total at 31 March 2015

31,959

114,026

596

13,415

15,019

0

2,258

25

177,298

Total at 31 March 2014

34,484

104,318

196

13,307

15,090

6

1,746

32

169,179

Revaluation Reserve Balance for
Property, Plant & Equipment

At 1 April 2014

10,245

11,535

4

0

1,078

0

0

36

22,898

Revaluation Movements

2,989

10,276

385

0

0

0

0

0

13,650

At 31 March 2015

13,234

21,811

389

0

1,078

0

0

36

36,548

Additions to Assets Under
Construction in 2014/15

Land				 0
Buildings excl Dwellings				

842

Dwellings				 0
Plant & Machinery				

373

Balance as at YTD				

1,215

Assets under construction relates to work undertaken to redevelop the trust’s St Helier site. This work is currently on hold pending the
setting of future commissioning intentions for the south west London health economy by the NHS Trust Development Agency: once
finalised these intentions will inform the future of the St Helier site and of this asset under construction.
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15.3 Property, plant and equipment
Donations towards property and equipment assets
have been received by the trust during the year by
the following bodies:

Between the 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 the
trust applied its revaluation indices as prepared by
Deloitte LLP, RICS qualified third party experts, which
lead to an increase of £4,936k in the carrying value of
its buildings.

• Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust Charitable Funds:
£103k
Revaluation of the trust’s estate
The trust’s accounting policy to ensure that its land
and buildings remain held at fair value is:
• Revalue the whole estate every five years; and
• In between the five year period apply revaluation
indices as prepared by qualified third party experts.
In line with these requirements during 2014-15 the
trust commissioned a revaluation of its land and
buildings, from Deloitte LLP, RICS qualified third
party experts, as at 1 April 2014. The impact of this
revaluation was a net expenditure impairment of
£4,618k and an increase in land and building values of
£4,821k (as the revaluation is carried out on an asset
by asset basis the trust experienced net impairments,
mainly at its Sutton site, whilst at the same time
seeing the majority of the land and building assets
increase in value).

Disposal of surplus assets
Subsequent to the revaluation of the trust’s
estate, and as part of the trust’s board continued
rationalisation of where our services are provided,
the Board agreed on 30 October 2014 to declare
an unused element of the trust’s Sutton site as a
non-current asset held for sale. In line with the
requirements of International Financial Report
Standard 5 the trust ceased depreciating the surplus
buildings at this date and thereafter accounted for
the land and buildings as available for sale. Land and
buildings with a value of £2,220k were transferred to
non-current assets available for sale on 1 November
2014. These assets were sold to the London Borough
of Sutton during the first quarter of 2015 leading to a
net profit after disposal expenses of £5,172k.

16.1 Intangible Non-current Assets
		
2014-15

Computer
Licences

Total

Cost or valuation:
£000’s
£000’s
At 1 April 2014
3,883
3,883
Additions Purchased
349
349
Reclassifications
162
162
At 31 March 2015
4,394
4,394
		
Amortisation		
At 1 April 2014
1,996
1,996
Charged during the year
546
546
At 31 March 2015
2,542
2,542
		
Net Book Value at 31 March 2015
1,852
1,852
		
Asset Financing: Net book value at 31 March 2015 comprises:
Purchased
1,707
1,707
Donated
145
145
Total at 31 March 2015
1,852
1,852
		
Revaluation reserve balance for intangible non-current assets
		
£000’s
£000’s
At 1 April 2014
0
0
Movements
0
0
At 31 March 2015
0
0

The economic lives of property plant and equipment range from:
		
		

Minimum life

Maximum life

Buildings excluding Dwellings

5

53

Dwellings

20

20

Plant & Machinery

5

15

Information Technology

5

10

Furniture and Fittings

5

10

Transport Equipment

5

5

16.2 Intangible Non-current Assets

The trust’s
		
Computer
Total
intangible assets
2013-14
Licences
comprise purchased
		
£000s
£000s
computer software
Cost or valuation:		
and software
licences. They are
At 1 April 2013
3,108
3,108
held in the balance
Additions - purchased
1,265
1,265
sheet at depreciated
Additions - donated
15
15
purchase cost and
have finite lives of
Disposals other than by sale
(505)
(505)
between 5 and 10
At 31 March 2014
3,883
3,883
years.
		
Amortisation		
At 1 April 2013
2,112
2,112
Disposals other than by sale
(452)
(452)
Charged during the year
336
336
At 31 March 2014
1,996
1,996
		
Net book value at 31 March 2014
1,887
1,887
		
Net book value at 31 March 2014 comprises:
Purchased
1,813
1,813
Donated
46
46
Finance Leased
28
28
Total at 31 March 2014
1,887
1,887
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17 Analysis of impairments and reversals recognised in 2014-15
			

2014/15

			

Total

			

£000s

Property, Plant and Equipment impairments and reversals taken to SoCI
Changes in market price		

4,631

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure		

4,631

Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI		

4,631

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - DEL		

0

Total Impairments charged to SoCI - AME		

4,631

Overall Total Impairments		

4,631

18 Investment property
The trust had no investment property (2013-14: £nil)

19 Commitments
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not
otherwise included in these financial statements:
		

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

		

£000s

£000s

Property, plant and equipment

3,317

1,046

Intangible assets

0

0

Total

3,317

1,046

The trust had no other financial commitments
(2013-14: £nil)

Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above
PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL

0

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments: amount charged to SOCI - DEL

0

20 Intra-Government and other balances

Current
receivables

Non-current
receivables

Current
payables

Non-current
payables

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Balances with Other Central Government Bodies

0

0

200

0

Balances with Local Authorities

0

0

557

0

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group

0

0

139

0

Balances with NHS bodies inside the Departmental Group

12,847

0

7,033

0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds

0

0

1

0

Balances with Bodies External to Government

7,576

202

29,129

0

At 31 March 2015

20,423

202

37,059

0

Balances with Other Central Government Bodies

18,272

0

6,333

0

Balances with Local Authorities

0

0

39

0

Balances with NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group

0

0

0

0

Balances with NHS Trusts and FTs

1,817

0

3,605

0

Balances with Public Corporations and Trading Funds

0

0

0

0

Balances with Bodies External to Government

5,244

115

31,092

0

At 31 March 2014

25,333

115

41,069

0

The impairment identified above relates to the trust’s five yearly revaluation of its land and
buildings. Further details are provided in Note 15.3.

		
Total
			

Property Plant
and Equipment

		

£000s

£000s

Impairments and reversals taken to SoCI		
Loss or damage resulting from normal operations

0

0

Over-specification of assets

0

0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction

0

0

Total charged to Departmental Expenditure Limit

0

0

Unforeseen obsolescence

0

0

Loss as a result of catastrophe

0

0

Other

0

0

Changes in market price

4,631

4,631

Total charged to Annually Managed Expenditure

4,631

4,631

4,631

4,631

		

		
		
Total Impairments of Property, Plant and Equipment changed to SoCI
		
Donated and Gov Granted Assets, included above

£000s

PPE - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments:
amount charged to SOCI - DEL

0

Intangibles - Donated and Government Granted Asset Impairments:
amount charged to SOCI - DEL

0

21 Inventories
		
		

Drugs

Consumables

Energy

Other

Total			

		

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Balance at 1 April 2014

1,347

1,936

276

31

3,590

Additions

26,807

11,591

6

106

38,510

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period

(26,555)

(11,222)

(252)

(111)

(38,140)

Balance at 31 March 2015

1,599

2,305

30

26

3,960

All stock categories other than drugs were valued on or around the 13 March 2015. There were no significant movements in stock received
or utilised between the date noted and the end of the year. Hence the value of stock represents a fair estimate of the value disclosed above
as at 31 March 2015. All stocks are held at Net Realisable Value.
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22.1 Trade and other receivables

NHS receivables - revenue

Current

Non-Current

Current

Non-Current

31 March
2015

31 March
2015

31 March
2014

31 March
2014

£000

£000

£000

£000

5,626

0

8,891

0

NHS receivables - capital

0

0

0

0

NHS prepayments and accrued income

7,221

0

10,141

0

Non-NHS receivables - revenue

3,006

249

2,876

131

Non-NHS receivables - capital

151

0

220

0

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income

2,532

0

3,270

0

PDC Dividend prepaid to DH

0

		

Provision for the impairment of receivables

(345)

(47)

(1,576)

(16)

VAT

1,360

0

1,054

0

Other receivables

872

0

457

0

Total

20,423

202

25,333

115

					
Total current and non current
20,625		
25,448

24.2 Other Financial Assets - Non Current
The trust has no other financial assets – non current (2013-14: none)

25 Other current assets
The trust has no other currents – non current (2013-14: none)

26 Cash and Cash Equivalents
		

2014-15

2013-14

		

£’000

£’000

Opening balance

1,298

6,863

Net change in year

1,426

(5,565)

Closing balance

2,724

1,298

		
Made up of		

Included in NHS receivables are £nil prepaid pension contributions (2013-14: £nil)

Cash with Government Banking Service

2,721

1,294

The great majority of trade is with Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England. As these NHS bodies are funded by Government to
buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

Commercial banks

0

0

Cash in hand

3

4

Liquid deposits with NLF

0

0

Current investments

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position

2,724

1,298

Bank overdraft - Government Banking Service

0

0

Bank overdraft - Commercial banks

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of cash flows

2,724

1,298

0

0

22.2 Receivables past their due date but not impaired
		

		

2014-15

2013-14

		

£’000

£’000

By up to three months

2,833

33

By three to six months

419

0

By more than six months

1,563

0

Total

4,815

33

		

2014-15

2013-14

		

£’000

£’000

Balance as at 1April

(1,592)

(1,498)

Amount written off during the year

1,200

230

Amount recovered during the year

0

48

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired

0

(372)

Balance at 31 March

(392)

(1,592)

22.3 Provision for impairment of receivables
		

Debts are impaired if there is specific credit control information that suggests the value of the debt should be impaired.
All debts for injury recovery costs are subject to a 18.9% (2013-14: 15.8%)

23 NHS LIFT investments
The trust has no lift investments (2013-14: none)

24.1 Other Financial Assets – Current
The trust has no other financial assets – current (2013-14: none)

		
Patients’ money held by the trust, not included above
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27 Non-current assets held for sale

Balance at 1 April 2014

Land

Buildings, excl. Dwellings
dwellings

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

0

0

0

0

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

1,612

557

51

2,220

Less assets sold in the year

(1,612)

(557)

(51)

(2,220)

Non-Current

Current

Non-Current

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2014
£000

Loans from other entities

38

0

0

0

Finance lease liabilities

1

0

3

1

0

Total

39

0

3

1

0

					
Total current and non-current
39		
4

Less impairment of assets held for sale

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for
reasons other than disposal by sale

0

0

0

0

Balance at 31 March 2015

0

0

				
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2015

0

0

0

30 Borrowings

Current

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale

0

29 Other liabilities
The trust has no other liabilities (2013-14: none)

				
Balance at 1 April 2013

0

0

0

0

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

0

0

0

0

Less assets sold in the year

0

0

0

0

Less impairment of assets held for sale

0

0

0

0

Borrowings / Loans - repayment of
principal falling due in:

DH

Other

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

39

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale

0

0

0

0

0-1 Years

0

39

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons
other than disposal by sale

0

0

0

0

1 - 2 Years

0

0

0

Balance at 31 March 2014

0

2 - 5 Years

0

0

0

Over 5 Years

0

0

0

Total

0

39

39

0

0

0

				
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale at 31 March 2014

0

0

0

0

On 30 October 2014 the trust Board declared an unused element of the trust’s Sutton site as surplus to requirements and available for purchase. In line with
the requirements of International Financial Report Standard 5 the trust ceased depreciating the surplus buildings at this date and thereafter accounted for the
land and buildings as available for sale. Land and buildings with a value of £2,220k were transferred to non-current assets available for sale on 1 November
2014. These assets were sold to the London Borough of Sutton in March 2015 leading to a net profit after disposal expenses of £5,172k.

28 Trade and other payables

Current

Non-Current

Current

Non-Current

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2014
£000

NHS payables - revenue

1,849

0

2,310

0

NHS payables - capital

0

0

0

0

NHS accruals and deferred income

5,184

0

4,532

0

Non-NHS payables - revenue

15,552

0

5,679

0

Non-NHS payables - capital

1,249

0

3,215

0

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income

12,664

0

21,726

0

Social security costs

62

0

854

0

PDC Dividend payable to DH

0

0

0

0

VAT

0

0

0

0

Tax

86

0

2,162

0

Payments received on account

0

0

0

0

Other

374

0

591

0

Total

37,020

0

41,069

0

					
Total current and non-current
37,020		
41,069
				
Included above:				
To Buy Out the Liability for Early Retirements Over 5 Years:				
number of Cases Involved (number)

0		 0

outstanding Pension Contributions at the year end

57		

56

31 Other financial liabilities
The trust has no other financial liabilities (2013-14: none)

32 Deferred revenue

Current

Non-Current

Current

Non-Current

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2015
£000

31 March
2014
£000

31 March
2014
£000

Opening balance at 1 April 2014

2,032

0

793

0

Deferred revenue addition

517

0

2,032

0

Transfer of deferred revenue

(2,032)

0

(793)

0

Current deferred Income at 31 March 2015

517

0

2,032

0

Total current and non-current

517		

2,032
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33 Finance lease obligations as lessee

Minimum
lease
payments
31 March
2015
£000s

Present value
of minimum
lease payments
31 March
2014
£000s

31 March
2015
£000s

31 March
2014
£000s

Within one year

1

3

1

3

Between one and five years

0

1

0

1

0

0

1

4

After five years

0

0

Less future finance charges

0

0

Minimum Lease Payments Present value of minimum lease payments

1

4

Included in:

Current borrowings

1

3

Non-current borrowings

0

1

			 1

4

The trust has no future expected sublease payments or contingent rents recognised as an expense.

Balance as at 31 March 2014

Other Provisions
This includes the following:
Injury Benefits (£862k)
This category of provision represents the future liability of the trust
for injury benefits. Payments are made to the NHS Pensions Agency
for staff who retired from the trust due to a work related injury.
The estimate of the full forecast liability is based upon an actuarial
estimate from the Pensions Agency. Timings are based on the
current rate of payments from this provision.

Restructuring Provision (£637k)
The trust has a provision for future demolition works that are
required at its Sutton site.
Total

Early
Departure
Costs

Legal Claims

Other

£’000

£000

£000

£000

4,565

3,474

47

1,044

				
Arising During the Year

836

0

44

792

Utilised During the Year

(429)

(249)

0

(180)

Reversed Unused

(1,286)

(1,199)

(16)

(71)

Unwinding of Discount

52

39		

13

				
Balance as at 31 March 2015

Legal Claims
The amount included is based on the excess the trust would pay
should the claim be successful.

Employment Tribunals (£99k)
This category of provision represents the future liability of the trust
for Employment Tribunals.

34 Finance lease receivables as lessor
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the trust did not
have any Finance lease receivables as lessor.

35 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Early Departure Costs
The provision represents the future liability of the trust for early
retirements from NHS service. The estimate of the full forecast
liability is based on actuarial estimates from the Pensions Agency.
Timings are based on the current rate of payments from the
provision.

3,738

2,065

75

1,598

Expected Timing of Cash Flows as at 31 March 2015				
No Later than One Year

1,071

211

75

785

Later than One Year and not later than Five Years

1,043

844

0

199

Later than Five Years

1,624

1,010

0

614

36 Contingencies
		

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

		

£000s

£000s

Contingent liabilities		
NHS Litigation Authority legal claims

0

0

Employment Tribunal and other employee related litigation

0

0

Redundancy

0

0

Other - legal claims

(43)

(80)

Amounts recoverable against contingent liabilities

0

0

Net value of contingent liabilities

(43)

(80)

		
Contingent assets		
Contingent assets

0

0

Net value of contingent assets

0

0

Amount Included in the Provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in Respect of Clinical Negligence Liabilities:
£’000
				
As at 31 March 2015

77,362

As at 31 March 2014

74,522

37 PFI and LIFT - additional information
The trust has no brought forward or newly entered PFI
contracts or LIFT schemes for the financial year ended
31 March 2015.
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38 Impact of IFRS treatment - current year
The trust has no brought forward or newly entered PFI
contracts or LIFT schemes for the financial year ended
31 March 2015.

39.2 Financial Assets

Embedded derivatives

39 Financial Instruments

39.1 Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure
of the role that financial instruments have had
during the period in creating or changing the risks
a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of
the continuing service provider relationship that the
NHS trust has with its commissioners and the way
those commissioners are financed, the NHS trust is
not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
business entities. Also financial instruments play a
much more limited role in creating or changing risk
than would be typical of listed companies, to which
the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The
NHS trust has limited powers to borrow or invest
surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are
generated by day-to-day operational activities rather
than being held to change the risks facing the NHS
trust in undertaking its activities.			
				
The trust’s treasury management operations are
carried out by the finance department, within
parameters defined formally within the trust’s
standing financial instructions and policies agreed by
the board of directors. The trust’s treasury activity is
subject to review by the trust’s internal auditors.		
							
Currency risk					
The trust is principally a domestic organisation with
the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities
being in the UK and sterling based. The trust has
no overseas operations. The trust therefore has low
exposure to currency rate fluctuations.			
				

At ‘fair value
through
profit and
loss’

Loans
and
receivables

Available
for sale

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

0
12,847

12,847

Receivables - non-NHS

4,872

4,872

Cash at bank and in hand

Interest rate risk 				
The trust borrows from government for capital
expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed
by the NHS Trust Development Authority. The
borrowings are for 1 – 25 years, in line with the life
of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the
National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.
The trust has no material outstanding borrowings
and therefore has low exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.					
		
Credit risk					
Because the majority of the trust’s revenue comes
from contracts with other public sector bodies, the
trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum
exposures as at 31 March 2015 are in receivables
from customers, as disclosed in the trade and other
receivables note.					
		
Liquidity risk					
The trust’s operating costs are incurred under
contracts with Clinical Commissioning Groups,
which are financed from resources voted annually
by Parliament. The trust funds its capital expenditure
either internally or through low term fixed interest
loans. The trust is not, therefore, exposed to
significant liquidity risks.

0

Receivables - NHS

2,724

2,724

Other financial assets

0

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2015

0

20,443

0

20,443

				
Embedded derivatives

0

0

Receivables - NHS

19,032

19,032

Receivables - non-NHS

3,227

3,227

Cash at bank and in hand

1,298

1,298

Other financial assets

0

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2014

0

23,557

0

23,557

At ‘fair value
through
profit and
loss’

Other

Total

£000s

£000s

£000s

39.3 Financial Liabilities

Embedded derivatives

0

0

NHS payables

7,144

7,144

Non-NHS payables

30,022

30,022

Other borrowings

38

38

PFI & finance lease obligations

1

1

Other financial liabilities

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2015

0

37,205

37,205

			
Embedded derivatives

0

0

NHS payables

6,842

6,842

Non-NHS payables

30,628

30,628

Other borrowings

0

0

PFI & finance lease obligations

4

4

Other financial liabilities

0

0

0

Total at 31 March 2014

0

37,474

37,474

40 Events after the end of the reporting period
There have been no post balance sheet events.
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41 Related Party Transactions
During the year none of the Department of Health
Ministers, trust board members or members of the key
management staff, or parties related to any of them,
has undertaken any material transactions with Epsom
and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust.

Entities are included when the trust undertakes
significant business with the counterparty.
The trust has also received revenue and capital
payments from its charitable fund, of which it is the
Corporate Trustee.
The Department of Health is regarded as a related
party and parent Department. During the year Epsom
and St Helier University Hospital NHS trust has had a
significant number of material transactions with the
Department, and with other entities for which the
Department is regarded as the parent Department.
The main entities are listed below with the value of
the transactions for 2014-15:

The trust is a member of the London Audit
Consortium and the Director of Finance is the
nominated representative of the trust in the capacity
of a Non-Executive Director. Day to day operations are
directed and controlled by the two executive directors
and the full board set strategic direction and approve
operations of the consortium.		

43 Financial performance targets
The figures given for periods prior to 2009/10 are on
a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the
targets were set for those years.

43.1 Breakeven performance

2005/06

2006/07

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013-14

2014/15

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Turnover		

267,049

272,854

296,498

315,020

327,548

334,761

331,320

343,567

356,010 365,769

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year		

79

(5,543)

827

4,902

(6,255)

3,332

(17,442)

(11,550)

(15,334) (4,958)

Adjustment for:										
Timing/non-cash impacting distortions:										

Payable
as at
31/3/2015

Receivable
as at
31/3/2015

£000s

Revenue
in the 12
months to
31/3/2015

£000s

Expenditure
in the 12
months to
31/3/2015

£000s

£000s

Pre FDL(97)24 agreements		 0
2006/07 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2005/06)
2007/08 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2006/07)

0

(1,718)

2008/09 PPA (relating to 1997/98 to 2007/08)

0

0

Adjustments for impairments

Surrey Downs CCG

415

2,125

98,777

-

Sutton CCG

537

934

100,991

-

HM Revenue and Customs

148

-

-

15,847

Consolidated Budgetary Guidance - adjustment
for dual accounting under IFRIC12*

52

-

-

20,282

Absorption accounting adjustment

National Health Service Pension Scheme

Revenue					
Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust Charitable Funds £180,000 (2013-14 £242,000)			
Capital Additions					
Epsom and St Helier NHS Trust Charitable Funds £103,000 (2013-14 £239,000)

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

9,132

0

5,165

(450)

8,225

4,631

0

(94)

(291)

405

0

0

0

0

0

		

Adjustments for impact of policy change re
donated/government grants assets

Other agreed adjustments		 0

The trust has also received donations from its charitable fund, of which it is the Corporate Trustee. These were: 			

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Break-even in-year position		

79

(7,261)

827

4,902

2,877

3,332

(12,277)

(12,094)

(7,400)

78

Break-even cumulative position		

536

(6,725)

(5,898)

(996)

1,881

5,213

(7,064)

(19,158)

(26,558) (26,480)

Due to the introduction of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) accounting in 2009-10, the trust’s financial
performance measurement needs to be aligned with the guidance issued by HM Treasury measuring Departmental expenditure.
Therefore, the incremental revenue expenditure resulting from the application of IFRS to IFRIC 12 schemes (which would include
PFI schemes), which has no cash impact and is not chargeable for overall budgeting purposes, is excluded when measuring
Breakeven performance. Other adjustments are made in respect of accounting policy changes (impairments and the removal of
the donated asset and government grant reserves) to maintain comparability year to year.

42 Losses and special payments
		

Total Value

Total Number

		

of Cases

of cases

		

£s

Losses

25,280

8

Special payments

11,195

49

Total losses and special payments

36,475

57

The total number of losses cases in 2013-14 and their total value was as follows:
		

Total Value

Total Number

		

of Cases

of cases

		

£s

Losses

516,006

253

Special payments

10,913

40

Total losses and special payments

526,919

293

2005/06

2006/07

2007/08

2008/09

2009/10

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013-14

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

Materiality test (I.e. is it equal to or less than 0.5%):
0.03
Break-even in-year position as a percentage of turnover

-2.66

0.28

1.56

0.88

1.00

-3.71

-3.52

-2.08

0.02

Break-even cumulative position as a percentage
of turnover

-2.46

-1.99

-0.32

0.57

1.56

-2.13

-5.58

-7.46

-7.24

0.02

The amounts in the above tables in respect of financial years 2005/06 to 2008/09 inclusive have not been
restated to IFRS and remain on a UK GAAP basis.
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43.2 Capital cost absorption rate
The figures given for periods prior to 2009/10 are on
a UK GAAP basis as that is the basis on which the
targets were set for those years.

43.3 External financing
The trust is given an external financing limit which it is
permitted to undershoot.
		

2014-15

2013-14

		

£000s

£000s

External financing limit (EFL)

(120)

17,821

Cash flow financing

(911)

17,432

Unwinding of Discount Adjustment		

77

Finance leases taken out in the year

0

0

Other capital receipts

0

0

External financing requirement

(911)

17,509

Under/(over) spend against EFL

791

312

		

2014-15

2013-14

		

£000s

£000s

Gross capital expenditure

9,907

14,707

Less: book value of assets disposed of

(2,365)

(192)

Less: capital grants

0

0

Less: donations towards the acquisition of non-current assets

(103)

(788)

Charge against the capital resource limit

7,439

13,727

Capital resource limit

9,772

14,042

(Over)/underspend against the capital resource limit

2,333

315

43.4 Capital resource limit
The trust is given a capital resource limit which it is not
permitted to exceed.

44 Third party assets
The trust did not hold any third party assets as at 31
March 2015 (2013-14: £nil)

Annual Governance Statement
The Annual Governance Report (AGS)
is part of the annual report and statutory
accounts. It is a statement signed by
the Chief Executive and is subject to
external audit.
In signing the AGS, the Chief Executive has
stated that the trust board has considered
all of the organisation’s risks (clinical and
non clinical) which may jeopardise the
successful functioning of the organisation,
and that appropriate steps have been
taken to minimise them.
The statement also describes the systems
and processes that the organisation has
put in place to reach the conclusions made
about risks. The statement is available
on request from the Trust Secretary
by calling 020 8296 2406 or emailing
communication@esth.nhs.uk.

Financial Statements
A full set of the trust’s accounts, and the
accounts for its charitable funds, can be
obtained, free of charge, from:
Amanda Harris
PA to the Director of Finance
St Helier Hospital
Wrythe Lane
Carshalton
Surrey, SM5 1AA
Email: amanda.harris@esth.nhs.uk
Tel: 020 8296 2960
You can also download the Trust’s
full accounts from our website:
www.epsom-sthelier.nhs.uk

